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TEMPLETON EMERGING MARKETS FUND

IMPORTANT SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

These materials are for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the “Meeting”) scheduled for February 26, 2010 at 12 Noon, Eastern time. The
enclosed materials discuss the proposals (the “Proposals” or each, a “Proposal”) to be voted on at the Meeting, and contain the Notice of Meeting,
proxy statement and proxy card. A proxy card is, in essence, a ballot. When you vote your proxy, it tells us how you wish to vote on important
issues relating to Templeton Emerging Markets Fund (the “Fund”). If you specify a vote on a Proposal, your proxy will be voted as you indicate. If
you specify a vote on one Proposal but not all Proposals, your proxy will be voted as specified on such Proposal and, on the Proposal for which
no vote is specified, your proxy will be voted FOR such Proposal. If you simply sign, date and return the proxy card, but do not specify a vote on
any Proposal, your proxy will be voted FOR the Proposals.

We urge you to spend a few minutes reviewing the Proposals in the proxy statement. Then, please fill out and sign the proxy card and
return it to us so that we know how you would like to vote. When shareholders return their proxies promptly, the Fund may be able to
save money by not having to conduct additional mailings.

We welcome your comments. If you have any questions, call Fund Information at (800) DIAL BEN® (800) 342-5236.

TELEPHONE AND INTERNET VOTING

For your convenience, you may be able to vote by telephone or through the Internet, 24 hours a day. If your account is eligible,
instructions are enclosed.
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TEMPLETON EMERGING MARKETS FUND

NOTICE OF 2010 ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the “Meeting”) of Templeton Emerging Markets Fund (the “Fund”) will be held at the Fund’s offices, 500 East
Broward Boulevard, 12th Floor, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33394-3091 on February 26, 2010 at 12 Noon, Eastern time.

During the Meeting, shareholders of the Fund will vote on the following Proposals:

1. The election of five Trustees of the Fund to hold office for the terms specified.

2. The ratification of the selection of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the independent registered public accounting firm of the
Fund for the fiscal year ending August 31, 2010.

By Order of the Board of Trustees,

Robert C. Rosselot

Vice President and Secretary

January 6, 2010

Please sign and promptly return the proxy card or voting instruction form in the enclosed self-addressed envelope regardless of the number
of shares you own.

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS FOR THE SHAREHOLDER MEETING
TO BE HELD ON FEBRUARY 26, 2010

The Fund’s Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders, proxy statement and form of proxy are available on the Internet at
http://www.proxyonline.com/FranklinTempleton.
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TEMPLETON EMERGING MARKETS FUND

PROXY STATEMENT

¿ INFORMATION ABOUT VOTING
Who is asking for my vote?

The Board of Trustees of Templeton Emerging Markets Fund (the “Fund”), in connection with the Fund’s Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the
“Meeting”), has requested your vote.

Who is eligible to vote?

Shareholders of record at the close of business on December 18, 2009 are entitled to be present and to vote at the Meeting or any adjourned
Meeting. Each share of record is entitled to one vote (and a proportionate fractional vote for each fractional share) on each matter presented at
the Meeting. The Notice of Meeting, the proxy card, and the proxy statement were first mailed to shareholders of record on or about January 6,
2010.

On what issues am I being asked to vote?

You are being asked to vote on two Proposals:

1. The election of five Trustees of the Fund; and

2. The ratification of the selection of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the independent registered public accounting firm of the
Fund for the fiscal year ending August 31, 2010.

How do the Fund’s Trustees recommend that I vote?

The Trustees unanimously recommend that you vote FOR the election of the five nominees and FOR the ratification of the selection of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (“PwC”) as the independent registered public accounting firm of the Fund.

How do I ensure that my vote is accurately recorded?

You may attend the Meeting and vote in person or you may complete and return the enclosed proxy card. If you are eligible to vote by telephone
or through the Internet, instructions are enclosed.

Proxy cards that are properly signed, dated and received at or prior to the Meeting will be voted as specified. If you specify a vote on any of the
Proposals, your proxy will be voted as you indicate, and any Proposal for which no vote is specified will be voted FOR that Proposal. If you
simply sign, date and return the proxy card, but do not specify a vote on either Proposal 1 or 2, your shares will be voted FOR the election of all
nominees as Trustee and FOR the ratification of the selection of PwC as the independent registered public accounting firm of the Fund.

May I revoke my proxy?

You may revoke your proxy at any time before it is voted by forwarding a written revocation or a later-dated proxy to the Fund that is received
by the Fund at or prior to the Meeting, or by attending the Meeting and voting in person.
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What if my shares are held in a brokerage account?

If your shares are held by your broker, then in order to vote in person at the Meeting, you will need to obtain a “Legal Proxy” from your broker
and present it to the Inspector of Election at the Meeting. Also, in order to revoke your proxy, you may need to forward your written revocation
or a later-dated proxy card to your broker rather than to the Fund.

¿ THE PROPOSALS
PROPOSAL 1:    ELECTION OF TRUSTEES

How are nominees selected?

The Board of Trustees of the Fund (the “Board” or the “Trustees”) has a Nominating Committee consisting of Edith E. Holiday (Chairperson), Frank
J. Crothers and Frank A. Olson, none of whom is an “interested person” of the Fund as defined by the Investment Company Act of 1940, as
amended (the “1940 Act”). Trustees who are not interested persons of the Fund are referred to as the “Independent Trustees,” and Trustees who are
interested persons of the Fund are referred to as the “Interested Trustees.”

The Nominating Committee is responsible for selecting candidates to serve as Trustees and recommending such candidates (a) for selection and
nomination as Independent Trustees by the incumbent Independent Trustees and the full Board; and (b) for selection and nomination as
Interested Trustees by the full Board. In considering a candidate’s qualifications, the Nominating Committee generally considers the potential
candidate’s educational background, business or professional experience, and reputation. In addition, the Nominating Committee has established
as minimum qualifications for Board membership as an Independent Trustee: (1) that such candidate be independent from relationships with the
Fund’s investment manager and other principal service providers both within the terms and the spirit of the statutory independence requirements
specified under the 1940 Act and the rules thereunder; (2) that such candidate demonstrate an ability and willingness to make the considerable
time commitment, including personal attendance at Board meetings, believed necessary to his or her function as an effective Board member; and
(3) that such candidate have no continuing relationship as a director, officer or board member of any U.S. registered investment company other
than those within the Franklin Templeton Investments fund complex or a closed-end business development company primarily investing in
non-public entities.

When the Board has or expects to have a vacancy, the Nominating Committee receives and reviews information on individuals qualified to be
recommended to the full Board as nominees for election as Trustees, including any recommendations by “Qualifying Fund Shareholders” (as
defined below). Such individuals are evaluated based upon the criteria described above. To date, the Nominating Committee has been able to
identify, and expects to continue to be able to identify, from its own resources an ample number of qualified candidates. The Nominating
Committee, however, will review recommendations from Qualifying Fund Shareholders to fill vacancies on the Board if these recommendations
are submitted in writing and addressed to the Nominating Committee at the Fund’s offices and are presented with appropriate background
material concerning the candidate that demonstrates his or her ability to serve as a Trustee, including as an Independent Trustee, of the Fund. A
Qualifying Fund Shareholder is a shareholder who (i) has continuously owned of record, or beneficially through a financial intermediary, shares
of the Fund having a net asset value of not less than two hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000) during the twenty-four month period prior to
submitting the recommendation; and (ii) provides a written notice to the Nominating Committee containing the following information: (a) the
name
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and address of the Qualifying Fund Shareholder making the recommendation; (b) the number of shares of the Fund which are owned of record
and beneficially by the Qualifying Fund Shareholder and the length of time that the shares have been owned by the Qualifying Fund
Shareholder; (c) a description of all arrangements and understandings between the Qualifying Fund Shareholder and any other person or persons
(naming such person or persons) pursuant to which the recommendation is being made; (d) the name, age, date of birth, business address and
residence address of the person or persons being recommended; (e) such other information regarding each person recommended by the
Qualifying Fund Shareholder as would be required to be included in a proxy statement filed pursuant to the proxy rules of the U.S. Securities
and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) had the nominee been nominated by the Board; (f) whether the shareholder making the recommendation
believes the person recommended would or would not be an “interested person” of the Fund, as defined in the 1940 Act; and (g) the written
consent of each person recommended to serve as a Trustee of the Fund if so nominated and elected/appointed.

The Nominating Committee may amend these procedures from time to time, including the procedures relating to the evaluation of nominees and
the process for submitting recommendations to the Nominating Committee.

The Board has adopted and approved a formal written charter for the Nominating Committee. A copy of the charter was included in the Fund’s
proxy statement for its 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Who are the nominees and Trustees?

The Board is divided into three classes. Each class has a term of three years. Each year the term of office of one class expires. This year, the
terms of four Trustees expire. Frank A. Olson, Constantine D. Tseretopoulos, Charles B. Johnson and Gregory E. Johnson have been nominated
for three-year terms, set to expire at the 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. J. Michael Luttig has been nominated for a one-year term, set to
expire at the 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. These terms continue, however, until their successors are duly elected and qualified. All of
the nominees are currently members of the Board; however, J. Michael Luttig is standing for election by the shareholders of the Fund for the
first time. An incumbent Independent Trustee recommended J. Michael Luttig for consideration by the Nominating Committee as a nominee for
Independent Trustee. Among these nominees, Charles B. Johnson and Gregory E. Johnson are deemed to be Interested Trustees. In addition, all
of the current nominees and Trustees are also directors or trustees of other Franklin® funds, Templeton® funds, and/or Mutual Series funds.

Interested Trustees of the Fund hold director and/or officer positions with Franklin Resources, Inc. (“Resources”) and its affiliates. Resources is a
publicly owned holding company, the principal stockholders of which are Charles B. Johnson and Rupert H. Johnson, Jr., who owned
approximately 16.5% and 16.2%, respectively, of its outstanding shares as of August 31, 2009. The shares deemed to be beneficially owned by
Charles B. Johnson include certain shares held by a private charitable foundation, of which he disclaims beneficial ownership. The shares
deemed to be beneficially owned by Rupert H. Johnson, Jr. include certain shares held by a private charitable foundation or by members of his
immediate family, of which he disclaims beneficial ownership. Resources, a global investment management organization operating as Franklin
Templeton Investments, is primarily engaged through various subsidiaries, in providing investment management, share distribution, transfer
agent and administrative services to a family of investment companies. Resources is a New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) listed holding
company (NYSE: BEN). Charles B. Johnson, Chairman of the Board, Trustee and Vice President of the Fund, and Gregory E. Johnson, Trustee
of the Fund, are father and
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son. Rupert H. Johnson, Jr., Vice President of the Fund, is the brother of Charles B. Johnson and the uncle of Gregory E. Johnson. There are no
other family relationships among the Trustees or nominees for Trustee.

Each nominee currently is available and has consented to serve if elected. If any of the nominees should become unavailable, the designated
proxy holders will vote in their discretion for another person or persons who may be nominated to serve as Trustees.

Listed below, for the nominees and Trustees, are their names, years of birth and addresses, as well as their positions and length of service with
the Fund, principal occupations during the past five years, the number of portfolios in the Franklin Templeton Investments fund complex that
they oversee, and other directorships held by the nominee or Trustee.

Nominees for Independent Trustee to serve until 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders:

Name, Year of Birth and Address Position
Length of

Time Served

Number of
Portfolios in
Franklin
Templeton
Investments
Fund Complex
Overseen
by Trustee* Other Directorships Held

Frank A. Olson (1932)
500 East Broward Blvd.
Suite 2100
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33394-3091

Trustee Since 2003 133 Hess Corporation (exploration and
refining of oil and gas).

Principal Occupation During Past 5 Years:
Chairman Emeritus, The Hertz Corporation (car rental) (since 2000) (Chairman of the Board (1980–2000) and Chief Executive Officer
(1977–1999)); and formerly, Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer, UAL Corporation (airlines).
Constantine D. Tseretopoulos  (1954) 500 East
Broward Blvd.
Suite 2100
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33394-3091

Trustee Since 1999 23 None

Principal Occupation During Past 5 Years:
Physician, Lyford Cay Hospital (1987–present); director of various nonprofit organizations; and formerly, Cardiology Fellow, University of
Maryland (1985–1987) and Internal Medicine Resident, Greater Baltimore Medical Center (1982–1985).
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Nominees for Interested Trustee to serve until 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders:

Name, Year of Birth and Address Position

Length of

Time Served

Number of

Portfolios in

Franklin

Templeton

Investments

Fund Complex

Overseen

by Trustee* Other Directorships Held
**Charles B. Johnson (1933)
One Franklin Parkway
San Mateo, CA 94403-1906

Chairman of
the Board,
Trustee and

Vice
President

Chairman of
the Board and
Trustee since
1995 and Vice
President
since 1992

133 None

Principal Occupation During Past 5 Years:
Chairman of the Board, Member—Office of the Chairman and Director, Franklin Resources, Inc.; Director, Templeton Worldwide, Inc.; and
officer and/or director or trustee, as the case may be, of some of the other subsidiaries of Franklin Resources, Inc. and of 41 of the investment
companies in Franklin Templeton Investments.
**Gregory E. Johnson (1961)
One Franklin Parkway
San Mateo, CA 94403-1906

Trustee Since 2007 89 None

Principal Occupation During Past 5 Years:
Director, President and Chief Executive Officer, Franklin Resources, Inc.; President, Templeton Worldwide, Inc.; and officer and/or director or
trustee, as the case may be, of some of the other subsidiaries of Franklin Resources, Inc. and of 32 of the investment companies in Franklin
Templeton Investments.

Nominee for Independent Trustee to serve until 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders:
J. Michael Luttig (1954)
500 East Broward Blvd.
Suite 2100 Fort Lauderdale, FL 33394-3091

Trustee Since
December 2009

133 Boeing Capital Corporation (aircraft
financing).

Principal Occupation During Past 5 Years:
Executive Vice President, General Counsel and member of Executive Council, The Boeing Company; and formerly, Federal Appeals Court
Judge, U.S. Court of Appeals for the Fourth Circuit (1991–2006).
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Independent Trustees serving until 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders:

Name, Year of Birth and Address Position
Length of

Time Served

Number of
Portfolios in
Franklin
Templeton
Investments
Fund Complex
Overseen
by Trustee* Other Directorships Held

Ann Torre Bates  (1958)
500 East Broward Blvd.
Suite 2100
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33394-3091

Trustee Since 2008 31 SLM Corporation (Sallie Mae) and
Allied Capital Corporation (financial
services).

Principal Occupation During Past 5 Years:
Independent strategic and financial consultant; and formerly, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, NHP Incorporated
(manager of multifamily housing) (1995–1997); and Vice President and Treasurer, US Airways, Inc. (until 1995).
David W. Niemiec (1949)
500 East Broward Blvd.
Suite 2100
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33394-3091

Trustee Since 2005 23 Emeritus Corporation (assisted living)
and OSI Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
(pharmaceutical products).

Principal Occupation During Past 5 Years:
Advisor, Saratoga Partners (private equity fund); and formerly, Managing Director, Saratoga Partners (1998–2001) and SBC Warburg Dillon
Read (investment banking) (1997–1998); Vice Chairman, Dillon, Read & Co. Inc. (investment banking) (1991–1997); and Chief Financial Officer,
Dillon, Read & Co. Inc. (1982–1997).
Larry D. Thompson (1945)
500 East Broward Blvd.
Suite 2100
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33394-3091

Trustee Since 2005 141 None

Principal Occupation During Past 5 Years:
Senior Vice President—Government Affairs, General Counsel and Secretary, PepsiCo, Inc. (consumer products); and formerly, Director, Delta
Airlines (aviation) (2003–2005) and Providian Financial Corp. (credit card provider) (1997–2001); Senior Fellow of The Brookings Institution
(2003–2004); Visiting Professor, University of Georgia School of Law (2004); and Deputy Attorney General, U.S. Department of Justice
(2001–2003).
Robert E. Wade  (1946)
500 East Broward Blvd.
Suite 2100
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33394-3091

Trustee Since 2006 38 El Oro Ltd (investments).

Principal Occupation During Past 5 Years:
Attorney at law.
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Independent Trustees serving until 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders:

Name, Year of Birth and Address Position

Length of

Time Served

Number of
Portfolios in
Franklin
Templeton
Investments
Fund Complex
Overseen
by Trustee* Other Directorships Held

Harris J. Ashton (1932)
500 East Broward Blvd.
Suite 2100
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33394-3091

Trustee Since 1992 133 Bar-S Foods (meat packing
company).

Principal Occupation During Past 5 Years:
Director of various companies; and formerly, Director, RBC Holdings, Inc. (bank holding company) (until 2002); and President, Chief
Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board, General Host Corporation (nursery and craft centers) (until 1998).
Frank J. Crothers (1944)
500 East Broward Blvd.
Suite 2100
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33394-3091

Trustee Since 1999 23 Fortis, Inc. (utility holding
company), and AML Foods Limited
(retail distributors).

Principal Occupation During Past 5 Years:
Director and Vice Chairman, Caribbean Utilities Company, Ltd. and director of various other private business and nonprofit organizations.
Edith E. Holiday (1952)
500 East Broward Blvd.
Suite 2100
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33394-3091

Lead
Independent
Trustee

Trustee
since 1996 and

Lead
Independent
Trustee

since 2007

133 Hess Corporation (exploration and
refining of oil and gas), H.J. Heinz
Company (processed foods and
allied products), RTI International
Metals, Inc. (manufacture and
distribution of titanium), Canadian
National Railway (railroad) and
White Mountains Insurance Group,
Ltd. (holding company).

Principal Occupation During Past 5 Years:
Director or Trustee of various companies and trusts; and formerly, Assistant to the President of the United States and Secretary of the Cabinet
(1990–1993); General Counsel to the United States Treasury Department (1989–1990); and Counselor to the Secretary and Assistant Secretary for
Public Affairs and Public Liaison-United States Treasury Department (1988–1989).

  * We base the number of portfolios on each separate series of the U.S. registered investment companies within the Franklin Templeton
Investments fund complex. These portfolios have a common investment manager or affiliated investment managers, and also may share a
common underwriter.
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** Charles B. Johnson and Gregory E. Johnson are “interested persons” of the Fund as defined by the 1940 Act. The 1940 Act limits the
percentage of interested persons that can comprise a fund’s board of trustees. Charles B. Johnson is considered an interested person of the
Fund due to his position as an officer, director and major shareholder of Resources, which is the parent company of the Fund’s investment
manager, and his position with the Fund. Gregory E. Johnson is considered an interested person of the Fund due to his position as an
officer, director and shareholder of Resources. Charles B. Johnson is the father of Gregory E. Johnson. The remaining Trustees of the Fund
are Independent Trustees.

The following tables provide the dollar range of the equity securities of the Fund and of all U.S. registered funds in the Franklin Templeton
Investments fund complex beneficially owned by the Trustees as of December 18, 2009:

Independent Trustees:

Name of Trustee
Dollar Range of Equity
Securities in the Fund(1)

Aggregate Dollar Range of Equity
Securities in all Funds in the

Franklin Templeton

Investments Fund Complex
Harris J. Ashton $1-$10,000 Over $100,000
Ann Torre Bates None Over $100,000
Frank J. Crothers None Over $100,000
Edith E. Holiday $1-$10,000 Over $100,000
J. Michael Luttig None None
David W. Niemiec None Over $100,000
Frank A. Olson None Over $100,000
Larry D. Thompson None Over $100,000
Constantine D. Tseretopoulos None Over $100,000
Robert E. Wade None Over $100,000

Interested Trustees:

Name of Trustee
Dollar Range of Equity
Securities in the Fund(1)

Aggregate Dollar Range of Equity
Securities in all Funds in the

Franklin Templeton

Investments Fund Complex
Charles B. Johnson $10,001-$50,000 Over $100,000
Gregory E. Johnson None Over $100,000

(1) Dollar range based on NYSE closing price on December 18, 2009.
How often do the Trustees meet and what are they paid?

The role of the Trustees is to provide general oversight of the Fund’s business and to ensure that the Fund is operated for the benefit of all of the
Fund’s shareholders. The Trustees anticipate meeting at least five times during the current fiscal year to review the operations of the Fund and the
Fund’s investment performance, and will meet more frequently as necessary. The Trustees also oversee the services furnished to the Fund by
Templeton Asset Management Ltd.—Hong Kong branch, the Fund’s investment manager (the “Investment Manager”), and various other service
providers.

The Fund’s Independent Trustees constitute the sole independent Board members of 14 investment companies in the Franklin Templeton
Investments complex for which each Independent Trustee currently is paid a $145,000 annual retainer fee, together with a $7,000 per meeting
fee for attendance at each regularly scheduled
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Board meeting, a portion of which fees are allocated to the Fund. To the extent held, compensation also may be paid for attendance at specially
called Board meetings. The Fund’s Lead Independent Trustee is paid an annual supplemental retainer of $15,000 for service to such investment
companies, a portion of which is allocated to the Fund. Board members who serve on the Audit Committee of the Fund and such other
investment companies receive a flat fee of $3,000 per Committee meeting attended in person and $2,000 per telephonic meeting, a portion of
which is allocated to the Fund. The Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Fund and such other investment companies receives an additional
fee of $15,000 per year, a portion of which is allocated to the Fund. Members of a Committee are not separately compensated for any committee
meeting held on the day of a regularly scheduled Board meeting.

During the fiscal year ended August 31, 2009, there were five meetings of the Board, three meetings of the Audit Committee, and three meetings
of the Nominating Committee. Each Trustee then in office attended at least 75% of the aggregate of the total number of meetings of the Board
and the total number of meetings held by all committees of the Board on which the Trustee served. The Fund does not currently have a formal
policy regarding Trustees’ attendance at the annual shareholders’ meeting. No Trustees attended the Fund’s last annual meeting held on
February 20, 2009.

Independent Trustees are also reimbursed for expenses incurred in connection with Board meetings. The Interested Trustees and certain officers
of the Fund who are shareholders of Resources are not compensated by the Fund for their services, but may receive indirect remuneration due to
their participation in management fees and other fees received by the Investment Manager and its affiliates from the funds in Franklin
Templeton Investments. The Investment Manager or its affiliates pay the salaries and expenses of the officers and the Interested Trustees. No
pension or retirement benefits are accrued as part of Fund expenses.

The table below indicates the total fees paid to the Independent Trustees by the Fund individually and by all of the funds in the Franklin
Templeton Investments fund complex. These Trustees also serve as directors or trustees of other funds in Franklin Templeton Investments, many
of which hold meetings at different dates and times. The Trustees and the Fund’s management believe that having the same individuals serving
on the boards of many of the funds in Franklin Templeton Investments enhances the ability of each fund to obtain, at a relatively modest cost to
each separate fund, the services of high caliber, experienced and knowledgeable Independent Trustees who can bring their experience and talents
to, and effectively oversee the management of, several funds.

Name of Trustee

Aggregate
Compensation

From the Fund(1)

Total Compensation from

Franklin Templeton
Investments Fund Complex(2)

Number of Boards within

Franklin Templeton
Investments Fund Complex
on which Trustee Serves(3)

Harris J. Ashton $ 1,979 $ 472,000 41
Ann Torre Bates(4) 2,052 354,000 16
Frank J. Crothers 2,055 194,000 14
Edith E. Holiday 2,062 509,000 41
J. Michael Luttig(5) N/A N/A 41
David W. Niemiec 2,102 205,250 14
Frank A. Olson 2,001 486,000 41
Larry D. Thompson 2,001 550,563 43
Constantine D. Tseretopoulos 1,964 186,000 14
Robert E. Wade(4) 2,001 515,000 18

(1) Compensation received for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2009.
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(2) Compensation received for the 12 months ended September 30, 2009.
(3) We base the number of boards on the number of U.S. registered investment companies in the Franklin Templeton Investments fund

complex. This number does not include the total number of series or funds within each investment company for which the Board members
are responsible. Franklin Templeton Investments currently includes 45 U.S. registered investment companies, with approximately 147 U.S.
based funds or series.

(4) Ms. Bates and Mr. Wade also are independent trustees of Franklin Mutual Series Funds and may, in the future, receive payments pursuant
to a discontinued retirement plan that generally provides payments to independent board members who have served seven years or longer
for such fund.

(5) Mr. Luttig was appointed to the Board effective December 1, 2009.
Board members historically have followed a policy of having substantial investments in one or more of the funds in Franklin Templeton
Investments, as is consistent with their individual financial goals. In February 1998, this policy was formalized through adoption of a
requirement that each Board member invest one-third of the fees received for serving as a director or trustee of a Templeton fund (excluding
committee fees) in shares of one or more Templeton funds (which may include the Fund) until the value of such investments equals or exceeds
five times the annual retainer and regular Board meeting fees paid to such Board member. Investments in the name of family members or entities
controlled by a Board member constitute fund holdings of such Board member for purposes of this policy, and a three-year phase-in period
applies to such investment requirements for newly elected Board members. In implementing such policy, a Board member’s fund holdings
existing on February 27, 1998, are valued as of such date with subsequent investments valued at cost.

Who are the Executive Officers of the Fund?

Officers of the Fund are appointed by the Trustees and serve at the pleasure of the Board. Listed below, for the Executive Officers, are their
names, years of birth and addresses, as well as their positions and length of service with the Fund, and principal occupations during the past five
years.

Name, Year of Birth and Address Position Length of Time Served
Charles B. Johnson Chairman of the Board,

Trustee and
Vice President

Chairman of the Board
and Trustee since 1995 and
Vice President since 1992

Please refer to the table “Nominees for Interested Trustee to serve until 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders” for additional information about
Mr. Charles B. Johnson.
Mark Mobius (1936)
17th Floor, The Chater House
8 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong

President and Chief
Executive Officer—

Investment Management

President since 1987 and Chief
Executive Officer—Investment
Management since 2002

Principal Occupation During Past 5 Years:
Portfolio Manager of various Templeton advisory affiliates; Executive Chairman, Templeton Asset Management Ltd.; and officer and/or
director, as the case may be, of some of the other subsidiaries of Franklin Resources, Inc. and of six of the investment companies in Franklin
Templeton Investments.
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Name, Year of Birth and Address Position Length of Time Served
Laura F. Fergerson (1962)
One Franklin Parkway
San Mateo, CA 94403-3091

Chief Executive Officer—

Finance and Administration

Since 2009

Principal Occupation During Past 5 Years:
Senior Vice President, Franklin Templeton Services, LLC; officer of 45 of the investment companies in Franklin Templeton Investments; and
formerly, Director and member of Audit and Valuation Committees, Runkel Funds, Inc. (2003–2004); Assistant Treasurer of most of the
investment companies in Franklin Templeton Investments (1997–2003); and Vice President, Franklin Templeton Services, LLC (1997–2003).
James M. Davis (1952)
One Franklin Parkway
San Mateo, CA 94403-1906

Chief Compliance Officer and Vice
President—AML Compliance

Chief Compliance Officer since 2004
and Vice President—AML Compliance

since 2006

Principal Occupation During Past 5 Years:
Director, Global Compliance, Franklin Resources, Inc.; officer of some of the other subsidiaries of Franklin Resources, Inc. and of 45 of the
investment companies in Franklin Templeton Investments; and formerly, Director of Compliance, Franklin Resources, Inc. (1994–2001).
Mark H. Otani (1968)
One Franklin Parkway
San Mateo, CA 94403-3091

Chief Financial Officer, Chief
Accounting Officer and Treasurer

Since 2009

Principal Occupation During Past 5 Years:
Director, Global Fund Accounting Operations, Franklin Templeton Investments; and officer of 14 of the investment companies in Franklin
Templeton Investments.
Rupert H. Johnson, Jr. (1940)
One Franklin Parkway
San Mateo, CA 94403-1906

1 099

(2

)%

(2

)%

Group Common and Other

235

251

(6

)%
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765

812

(6

)%

(2

)%

Non-IFRS exclusions

(4

)

(38

)

(89

)%

(13

)

(59

)

(78

)%

Gross profit
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2 019

2 185

(8

)%

5 684

6 546

(13

)%

Operating profit/(loss)

(54

)

(230

)

(611

)
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(403

)

Nokia�s Networks business

246

334

(26

)%

358

1 064

(66

)%

Nokia Technologies

290
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390

(26

)%

856

736

16

%

Group Common and Other

(49

)

(56

)

(153

)

(217

)
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Non-IFRS exclusions

(541

)

(898

)

(40

)%

(1 671

)

(1 986

)

(16

)%

Operating margin %

(1.0

)%

(4.2

)%
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320

bps

(3.9

)%

(2.4

)%

(150

)bps

Gross profit (non-IFRS)

2 141

2 365

(9

)%

6 120

6 911

(11

)%
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Operating profit/(loss) (non-IFRS)

487

668

(27

)%

1 060

1 583

(33

)%

Operating margin % (non-IFRS)

8.9

%

12.1

%

(320

)bps
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6.7

%

9.6

%

(290

)bps

Financial income and expenses

(60

)

(63

)

(5

)%

(224

)

(496

)

(55

)%
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Income taxes

(15

)

102

89

(154

)

Profit/(loss) for the period

(127

)

(190

)

(33

)%
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(752

)

(1 058

)

(29

)%

EPS, diluted

(0.02

)

(0.03

)

(0.13

)

(0.19

)

Financial income and expenses (non-IFRS)
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(48

)

(63

)

(24

)%

(247

)

(207

)

19

%

Income taxes (non-IFRS)

(133

)

(90

)

48

%

(275

)
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(211

)

30

%

Profit/(loss) for the period (non-IFRS)

309

516

(40

)%

532

1 159

(54

)%

EPS, diluted (non-IFRS)

0.06
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0.09

(33

)%

0.10

0.20

(50

)%

Results are as reported and relate to continuing operations unless otherwise specified. The financial information in this report is unaudited.
Non-IFRS results exclude costs related to the acquisition of Alcatel-Lucent and related integration, goodwill impairment charges, intangible
asset amortization and other purchase price fair value adjustments, restructuring and associated charges and certain other items that may not be
indicative of Nokia�s underlying business performance. For details, please refer to note 2, �Non-IFRS to reported reconciliation�, in the notes to the
Financial statement information in this report. Change in net sales at constant currency excludes the effect of changes in exchange rates in
comparison to euro, our reporting currency. For more information on currency exposures, please refer to note 1, �Basis of Preparation�, in the
�Financial statement information� section in this report.

Nokia, Q3 2018 compared to Q3 2017

Nokia non-IFRS and reported net sales were both down approximately 1% year-on-year. On a constant currency basis, Nokia non-IFRS net sales
were approximately flat year-on-year and Nokia reported net sales grew approximately 1% year-on-year.
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Reported net sales in Q3 2018, excluding approximately EUR 180 million of non-recurring catch-up licensing net sales which benefitted the
year-ago period, grew by approximately 3% year on year, with growth across all 5 of our Networks business groups, as well as in Nokia
Technologies.

In our Networks business, our order backlog was strong at the end of Q3 2018, and we continue to expect commercial 5G network deployments
to begin near the end of 2018. We continued to build momentum in our end-to-end strategy, with approximately 43% of our sales pipeline now
comprised of cross-business group deals. We also continued to make progress with our strategy to diversify and grow by targeting attractive
adjacent markets, with continued year-on-year growth in net sales to large enterprise vertical and webscale customers.

In Nokia Technologies, we maintained our strong track record, with 19% year-on-year growth in recurring licensing net sales. The decrease in
net sales on a year-on-year basis was primarily due to the absence of approximately EUR 180 million of non-recurring catch-up licensing net
sales, which benefitted the year-ago period. We continued to make good progress on licensing agreements. Subsequent to the end of Q3 2018,
we extended our patent licensing agreement with Samsung and reiterated our financial guidance for Nokia Technologies.

Nokia non-IFRS diluted EPS amounted to EUR 0.06, compared to EUR 0.09 in the year-ago period. Non-IFRS diluted EPS, excluding
non-recurring catch-up licensing net sales which benefitted the year-ago period, declined by EUR 0.01 year-on-year. Adjusted for the
non-recurring item, the decline in non-IFRS diluted EPS was primarily driven by lower gross profit across all three reportable segments of our
Networks business, partially offset by improved recurring gross profit performance in our Technologies business, as well as lower operating
expenses in both Networks and Technologies.

Nokia reported diluted EPS amounted to negative EUR 0.02, compared to negative EUR 0.03 in the year-ago period, primarily driven by lower
restructuring and associated charges, lower impairment of assets and improved recurring gross profit performance in our Technologies business,
partially offset by the absence of approximately EUR 180 million of non-recurring catch-up licensing net sales, which benefitted the year-ago
period, lower gross profit across all three reportable segments in our Networks business and income taxes.

Nokia, January-September 2018 compared to January-September 2017

Nokia reported net sales decreased 5% year-on-year. On a constant currency basis, Nokia reported net sales were flat year-on-year.

In our Networks business, our order backlog was strong at the end of Q3 2018, and we continue to expect commercial 5G network deployments
to begin near the end of 2018. We continued to build momentum in our end-to-end strategy, with approximately 43% of our sales pipeline now
comprised of cross-business group deals. We also continued to make progress with our strategy to diversify and grow by targeting attractive
adjacent markets, with continued year-on-year growth in net sales to large enterprise vertical and webscale customers.
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In Nokia Technologies, we maintained our strong track record, with 18% year-on-year growth in recurring licensing net sales. The decrease in
net sales on a year-on-year basis was primarily due to the absence of approximately EUR 170 million of non-recurring catch-up licensing net
sales, which benefitted the year-ago period. We continued to make good progress on licensing agreements. Subsequent to the end of Q3 2018,
we extended our patent licensing agreement with Samsung and reiterated our financial guidance for Nokia Technologies.

Nokia reported operating loss amounted to EUR 611 million, compared to EUR 403 million in the year-ago period. This was primarily driven by
lower gross profit across all three reportable segments in our Networks business and the absence of approximately EUR 170 million of
non-recurring catch-up licensing net sales, which benefitted the year-ago period, partially offset by lower restructuring and associated charges
and lower impairment of assets.

Nokia reported diluted EPS amounted to negative EUR 0.13, compared to negative EUR 0.19 in the year-ago period. This was primarily driven
by the absence of expenses related to the early redemption of debt, lower restructuring and associated charges and income taxes, partially offset
by lower gross profit across all three reportable segments in our Networks business and the absence of approximately EUR 170 million of
non-recurring catch-up licensing net sales, which benefitted the year-ago period.

CASH AND CASH FLOW IN Q3 2018

EUR million, at end of period Q3�18 Q2�18
QoQ
change Q4�17

YTD
change

Total cash and current financial investments(1) 5 612 5 861 (4)% 8 280 (32)%
Net cash and current financial investments(1) 1 876 2 144 (13)% 4 514 (58)%

(1) For details, please refer to note 9, �Net cash and current financial investments�, and note 15, �Performance measures�, in the �Financial statement
information� section in this report.

During the third quarter 2018, Nokia�s total cash and current financial investments decreased by EUR 249 million and Nokia�s net cash and
current financial investments (�net cash�) decreased by EUR 268 million.

In the third quarter 2018, net cash used in operating activities was EUR 82 million:

•  Nokia�s adjusted profit before changes in net working capital was EUR 354 million in the third quarter 2018.

•  In the third quarter 2018, Nokia experienced a decrease in net cash related to net working capital of
approximately EUR 340 million, of which approximately EUR 110 million related to restructuring and associated
cash outflows, and approximately EUR 230 million related to an
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increase in inventories and an increase in receivables, partially offset by an increase in liabilities.

•  The increase in receivables was approximately EUR 80 million.

•  The increase in inventories was approximately EUR 270 million, primarily due to our decision to ensure
sufficient flexibility to deliver higher levels of equipment sales.

•  The increase in liabilities was approximately EUR 130 million, primarily due to an increase in accounts
payable, partially offset by a decrease in contract liabilities.

In the third quarter 2018, net cash used in investing activities primarily related to capital expenditures of approximately EUR 140 million.

In the third quarter 2018, net cash used in financing activities primarily related to the payment of withholding tax of approximately EUR 130
million, associated with the dividend paid in the second quarter 2018.

COST SAVINGS PROGRAM

The following table summarizes the financial information related to our cost savings program, as of the end of the third quarter 2018. Balances
related to previous Nokia and Alcatel-Lucent restructuring and cost savings programs have been included as part of this overall cost savings
program as of the second quarter 2016.

 In EUR million, approximately Q3�18
Opening balance of restructuring and associated liabilities 750
+ Charges in the quarter 70
- Cash outflows in the quarter 110
= Ending balance of restructuring and associated liabilities 710
of which restructuring provisions 580
of which other associated liabilities 130

Total expected restructuring and associated charges 1 750
- Cumulative recorded 1 560
= Charges remaining to be recorded 190

Total expected restructuring and associated cash outflows 2 100
- Cumulative recorded 1 300
= Cash outflows remaining to be recorded 800

The following table summarizes our full year 2016 and 2017 results and future expectations related to our cost savings program and network
equipment swaps.
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Actual Expected amounts for
In EUR million, Cumulative FY 2019 and
approximately through FY 2018  beyond Total
rounded to the nearest EUR Actual Actual the end of as of the end of as of the end of as of the end of
50 million 2016 2017 2017 Q2�18 Q3�18 Q2�18 Q3�18 Q2�18 Q3�18
Recurring annual cost savings 550 250 800 400 400 0 0 1 200 1 200
- operating expenses 350 150 500 300 300 0 0 800 800
- cost of sales 200 100 300 100 100 0 0 400 400
Restructuring and associated charges 750 550 1 300 600 450 0 0 1 900 1 750
Restructuring and associated cash
outflows 400 550 950 650 600 650 550 2 250 2 100
Charges related to network equipment
swaps 150 450 600 650 600 150 100 1 400 1 300
Cash outflows related to network
equipment swaps 150 450 600 650 600 150 100 1 400 1 300

We now expect restructuring and associated charges to total EUR 1 750 million and the related cash outflows to total EUR 2 100 million, both of
which are EUR 150 million below our previous expectations. In addition, we now expect the charges and cash outflows related to network
equipment swaps to total EUR 1 300 million, which is EUR 100 million below our previous expectations.

Note that the above expectations do not reflect the changes resulting from the cost reduction program announced on October 25, 2018. We
expect the program to result in a EUR 700 million reduction of non-IFRS annualized operating expenses and production overheads by the end of
2020 compared to the end of 2018, of which EUR 500 million is expected from operating expenses. The restructuring charges and cash outflows
are both expected to be EUR 900 million.

Under the cost reduction program announced on October 25, 2018, Nokia is targeting savings from a wide range of areas, including investments
in digitalization to drive more automation and productivity; further process and tool simplification; significant reductions in central support
functions to reach best-in-class cost levels; prioritization of R&D programs to best create long-term value; a sharp reduction of R&D in legacy
products; driving efficiency from further application of our best-in-class common software foundation and innovative software development
techniques; the consolidation of selected cross-company activities; and further reductions in real estate and other overhead costs.

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

Nokia delivered another solid quarter on its strategic commitments and its 5G leadership position across business groups and geographies.
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In the first pillar of our strategy, leading in high-performance, end-to-end networks with communication service providers:

Nokia announced a $3.5 billion, multi-year 5G network deal with T-Mobile to accelerate the deployment of a nationwide 5G network in the US.

In September, AT&T named Nokia as one of its 5G suppliers with the US operator�s announcement to introduce mobile 5G in parts of five
additional cities � Houston, Jacksonville, Louisville, New Orleans, and San Antonio � this year.

Also in September, Nokia and Sprint gave the first live demonstration in the US of a 5G New Radio connection over a dual mode-capable
Massive MIMO radio.

Earlier in the quarter, Verizon and Nokia completed the first transmission of a 3GPP New Radio 5G signal to a receiver situated in a moving
vehicle. The test followed the companies� successful completion of a series of outdoor data sessions over the 5G New Radio standard.

Nokia announced plans to sell the majority of its IP Video business to Volaris Group of Canada. The transaction is expected to close in Q4 2018.

Idea Cellular in Delhi started to deploy Nokia�s cloud-native core technology as part of the operator�s digitalization effort to meet increasing data
and mobile broadband demand.

Ooredoo Myanmar selected Nokia to secure its telecom and ICT networks against cyber threats. Nokia analysed Ooredoo�s systems using Nokia�s
Security Risk Index. The Managed Security Service then implemented performance improvements to ensure that critical information assets are
adequately protected against known and unknown threats.

Early in the quarter, the consulting and research firm Analysys Mason rated Nokia�s AVA cognitive services platform as the leading Telco AI
Ecosystem (TAE) offering in the market. The firm highlighted the AVA platform�s ability, ahead of the competition, to give vendors a single
TAE in all their applications and intelligence across multiple systems and enable the optimization of end-to-end processes.

Nokia WING (Worldwide IoT Network Grid) momentum continued with Tele2 IoT launching a new global IoT platform, EnCore, making it the
first operator to offer commercial IoT services to enterprises using Nokia WING. In September, WING won the global �corporate award� in the
Smart Emerging Technologies category at ITU Telecom World.
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In the second pillar of our strategy, expanding network sales to select vertical markets needing high-performing, secure networks:

Nokia and Tencent signed an agreement to accelerate 5G webscale research and applications to benefit millions of Internet users in China.

In the third pillar of our strategy, developing a strong, standalone software business at scale:

Telia Company chose Nokia�s NetGuard Identity Access Manager to enhance security across the operator�s networks in Sweden and Finland.

Also in the quarter, the Nokia Intelligent Care Assistant solution was introduced into the Salesforce AppExchange. The Nokia Intelligent Care
Assistant integrates the Salesforce Service Cloud with Nokia�s Autonomous Customer Care software, equipping agents with insights to improve
customer satisfaction and enrich and monetize digital experiences.

In the quarter, Nokia Software demonstrated the strength of its portfolio, as well as orders and net sales momentum, by winning major accounts
including British Telecom, Telenor One Europe, STC, Telefonica UK and Sky.

In the fourth pillar of our strategy, which is now focused exclusively on licensing:

Nokia announced that it expects the licensing rate for the Nokia 5G standard essential patent (SEP) portfolio to be capped at EUR 3 per mobile
phone. Nokia said its licensing practices for licensing 5G SEPs for mobile phones will be consistent with its licensing undertakings made to
relevant standard setting organizations.

Nokia�s brand licensee, HMD Global, continued the refresh of its smartphone portfolio with the launch of the Nokia 6.1 Plus and Nokia 5.1 Plus.
HMD also announced plans to double its manufacturing capacity in India to satisfy demand.

In the quarter, Nokia expanded choice for licensees in the automotive sector by joining the Avanci licensing platform.

Also, subsequent to the end of Q3 2018, Nokia extended its patent licensing agreement with Samsung. Nokia will follow its existing practices
for disclosing patent licensing revenue in its quarterly announcements and expects that revenues for the extended agreement will start to be
recognized in the first quarter of 2019.

RISKS AND FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
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It should be noted that Nokia and its businesses are exposed to various risks and uncertainties and certain statements herein that are not historical
facts are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements reflect Nokia�s current expectations and views of future developments
and include statements regarding: A) expectations, plans or benefits related to our strategies and growth management; B) expectations, plans or
benefits related to future performance of our businesses; C)
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expectations and targets regarding financial performance, results, operating expenses, taxes, currency exchange rates, hedging, cost savings and
competitiveness, as well as results of operations including targeted synergies and those related to market share, prices, net sales, income and
margins; D) expectations, plans or benefits related to changes in organizational and operational structure; E) expectations regarding market
developments, general economic conditions and structural changes; F) our ability to integrate acquired businesses into our operations and
achieve the targeted business plans and benefits, including targeted benefits, synergies, cost savings and efficiencies; G) expectations, plans or
benefits related to any future collaboration or to business collaboration agreements or patent license agreements or arbitration awards, including
income to be received under any collaboration or partnership, agreement or award; H) timing of the deliveries of our products and services,
including our expectations around the rollout of 5G services; I) expectations and targets regarding collaboration and partnering arrangements,
joint ventures or the creation of joint ventures, and the related administrative, legal, regulatory and other conditions, as well as our expected
customer reach; J) outcome of pending and threatened litigation, arbitration, disputes, regulatory proceedings or investigations by authorities; K)
expectations regarding restructurings, investments, capital structure optimization efforts, uses of proceeds from transactions, acquisitions and
divestments and our ability to achieve the financial and operational targets set in connection with any such restructurings, investments, capital
structure optimization efforts, divestments and acquisitions; and L) statements preceded by or including �believe�, �expect�, �expectations�, �commit�,
�anticipate�, �foresee�, �sees�, �target�, �estimate�, �designed�, �aim�, �plans�, �intends�, �focus�, �continue�, �project�, �should�, �is to�, �will� or similar expressions.

These forward-looking statements are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control, which could cause
actual results to differ materially from such statements. These statements are based on management�s best assumptions and beliefs in light of the
information currently available to it. These forward-looking statements are only predictions based upon our current expectations and views of
future events and developments and are subject to risks and uncertainties that are difficult to predict because they relate to events and depend on
circumstances that will occur in the future.  Factors, including risks and uncertainties that could cause these differences include, but are not
limited to: 1) our strategy is subject to various risks and uncertainties and we may be unable to successfully implement our strategic plans,
sustain or improve the operational and financial performance of our business groups, correctly identify or successfully pursue business
opportunities or otherwise grow our business; 2) general economic and market conditions and other developments in the economies where we
operate, including the timeline for the deployment of 5G and our ability to successfully capitalize on that deployment; 3) competition and our
ability to effectively and profitably invest in new competitive high-quality products, services, upgrades and technologies and bring them to
market in a timely manner; 4) our dependence on the development of the industries in which we operate, including the cyclicality and variability
of the information technology and telecommunications industries and our own R&D capabilities and investments; 5) our dependence on a
limited number of customers and large multi-year agreements; 6) our ability to maintain our existing sources of intellectual property-related
revenue through our intellectual property, including through licensing, establish new sources of revenue and protect our intellectual property
from infringement; 7) our ability to manage and improve our financial and
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operating performance, cost savings, competitiveness and synergies generally and our ability to implement changes to our organizational and
operational structure efficiently; 8) our global business and exposure to regulatory, political or other developments in various countries or
regions, including emerging markets and the associated risks in relation to tax matters and exchange controls, among others; 9) our ability to
achieve the anticipated benefits, synergies, cost savings and efficiencies of acquisitions, including the acquisition of Alcatel-Lucent; 10)
exchange rate fluctuations, as well as hedging activities; 11) our ability to successfully realize the expectations, plans or benefits related to any
future collaboration or business collaboration agreements and patent license agreements or arbitration awards, including income to be received
under any collaboration, partnership, agreement or arbitration award; 12) Nokia Technologies� ability to protect its IPR and to maintain and
establish new sources of patent, brand and technology licensing income and IPR-related revenues, particularly in the smartphone market, which
may not materialize as planned, 13) our dependence on IPR technologies, including those that we have developed and those that are licensed to
us, and the risk of associated IPR-related legal claims, licensing costs and restrictions on use; 14) our exposure to direct and indirect regulation,
including economic or trade policies, and the reliability of our governance, internal controls and compliance processes to prevent regulatory
penalties in our business or in our joint ventures; 15) our reliance on third-party solutions for data storage and service distribution, which expose
us to risks relating to security, regulation and cybersecurity breaches; 16) inefficiencies, breaches, malfunctions or disruptions of information
technology systems; 17) our exposure to various legal frameworks regulating corruption, fraud, trade policies, and other risk areas, and the
possibility of proceedings or investigations that result in fines, penalties or sanctions; 18) adverse developments with respect to customer
financing or extended payment terms we provide to customers; 19) the potential complex tax issues, tax disputes and tax obligations we may
face in various jurisdictions, including the risk of obligations to pay additional taxes; 20) our actual or anticipated performance, among other
factors, which could reduce our ability to utilize deferred tax assets; 21) our ability to retain, motivate, develop and recruit appropriately skilled
employees; 22) disruptions to our manufacturing, service creation, delivery, logistics and supply chain processes, and the risks related to our
geographically-concentrated production sites; 23) the impact of litigation, arbitration, agreement-related disputes or product liability allegations
associated with our business; 24) our ability to re-establish investment grade rating or maintain our credit ratings; 25) our ability to achieve
targeted benefits from, or successfully implement planned transactions, as well as the liabilities related thereto; 26) our involvement in joint
ventures and jointly-managed companies; 27) the carrying amount of our goodwill may not be recoverable; 28) uncertainty related to the amount
of dividends and equity return we are able to distribute to shareholders for each financial period; 29) pension costs, employee fund-related costs,
and healthcare costs; and 30) risks related to undersea infrastructure, as well as the risk factors specified on pages 71 to 89 of our 2017 annual
report on Form 20-F published on March 22, 2018 under �Operating and financial review and prospects-Risk factors� and in our other filings or
documents furnished with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission. Other unknown or unpredictable factors or underlying assumptions
subsequently proven to be incorrect could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements. We do not
undertake any obligation to publicly update or revise forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or
otherwise, except to the extent legally required.
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The financial report was authorized for issue by management on October 24, 2018.

•  Nokia plans to publish its fourth quarter and full year 2018 results on January 31, 2019.

Media Enquiries:

Nokia

Communications

Tel. +358 (0) 10 448 4900

Email: press.services@nokia.com

Jon Peet, Vice President, Corporate Communications

Investor Enquiries:

Nokia Investor Relations

Tel. +358 4080 3 4080

Email: investor.relations@nokia.com

About Nokia

We create the technology to connect the world. Powered by the research and innovation of Nokia Bell Labs, we serve communications service
providers, governments, large enterprises and consumers, with the industry�s most complete, end-to-end portfolio of products, services and
licensing.

We adhere to the highest ethical business standards as we create technology with social purpose, quality and integrity. Nokia is enabling the
infrastructure for 5G and the Internet of Things to transform the human experience www.nokia.com
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Interim Report for Q3 and January-September 2018

Full year 2018 guidance reiterated following solid Q3 results

Rajeev Suri, President and CEO, on Q3 2018 results

Nokia�s third-quarter results validate our earlier view that conditions would improve in the second half of 2018. This was particularly evident in
our excellent momentum in orders, growth across all five of our Networks business groups, and improved profitability compared to the first half
of the year. Despite some risks related to short-term delays in project timing and product deliveries, we remain on track to deliver on our
full-year guidance.

We are executing well on our strategy with particularly good progress in Nokia Software and expansion to select enterprise vertical markets.
Separately today, we announced steps to accelerate that progress as well as sharpen our customer focus and maintain cost leadership. These are
important steps that give us added confidence in our ability to deliver on our 2020 financial commitments.

Q3 and January-September 2018 reported and non-IFRS results. Refer to note 1, �Basis of Preparation�, note 2, �Non-IFRS to reported
reconciliation� and note 15, �Performance measures�, in the �Financial statement information� section for details.

EUR million (except for EPS in EUR) Q3�18 Q3�17 YoY change

Constant
currency
YoY
change

Q1-
Q3�18

Q1-
Q3�17

YoY
change

Constant
currency
YoY
change

Net sales 5 458 5 500 (1)% 1% 15 695 16 496 (5)% 0%
Operating profit/(loss) (54) (230) (611) (403)
Operating margin % (1.0)% (4.2)% 320bps (3.9)% (2.4)% (150)bps
EPS, diluted (0.02) (0.03) (0.13) (0.19)
Operating profit/(loss) (non-IFRS) 487 668 (27)% 1 060 1 583 (33)%
Operating margin % (non-IFRS) 8.9% 12.1% (320)bps 6.7% 9.6% (290)bps
EPS, diluted (non-IFRS) 0.06 0.09 (33)% 0.10 0.20 (50)%
Net cash and current financial
investments 1 876 2 731 (31)% 1 876 2 731 (31)%

•  Reported net sales in Q3 2018 were EUR 5.5bn, compared to EUR 5.5bn in Q3 2017. On a constant currency
basis, reported net sales grew by 1% year on year.

•  Reported net sales in Q3 2018, excluding non-recurring catch-up licensing net sales which benefitted the
year-ago period, grew by 3% year-on-year (4% on a constant currency basis). In Q3 2018, we achieved year-on-year
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growth across all five of our Networks business groups, as well as in Nokia Technologies.

•  Reported diluted EPS in Q3 2018 was negative EUR 0.02, compared to negative EUR 0.03 in Q3 2017,
primarily driven by lower restructuring and impairment charges, partially offset by the absence of non-recurring
catch-up licensing net sales, which benefitted the year-ago period, our gross profit performance and income taxes.

•  Non-IFRS diluted EPS in Q3 2018 was EUR 0.06, compared to EUR 0.09 in Q3 2017. Non-IFRS diluted EPS,
excluding non-recurring catch-up licensing net sales, declined by EUR 0.01 year-on-year, as we were able to partially
offset our gross profit performance with continued operating expense reductions, in line with our cost savings
program.

•  Net cash and current financial investments decreased by approximately EUR 270mn sequentially. In Q3 2018,
we generated cash profits, which were more than offset by changes in net working capital, capital expenditures,
payment of dividend withholding tax and restructuring and associated cash outflows. We expect to end 2018 with a
strong financial position, based on strong seasonality in Q4.

•  We reiterate 2018 non-IFRS diluted EPS guidance and remain on target to deliver EUR 1.2bn of recurring
annual cost savings in full year 2018.

October 25, 2018

1
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Outlook

Metric Guidance Commentary
Nokia Non-IFRS

operating
margin

9-11% for full year 2018
and
12-16% for full year 2020

Nokia�s guidance for significant improvement between full year 2018 and full
year 2020 is primarily due to expectations for:

a)  Improved results in Nokia�s Networks business, which are
detailed below;

Non-IFRS
diluted
earnings per
share

EUR 0.23 - 0.27 in full
year 2018 and
EUR 0.37 - 0.42 in full
year 2020

b)  Improved results in Nokia Technologies, which are
detailed below; and

c)  Benefits from our EUR 700 million cost reduction
program announced on October 25, 2018, which are detailed in
the �Cost savings program� discussion in the Financial results
section. (updated commentary)

(This is an update to earlier commentary for lower Nokia support function costs
within Nokia�s Networks business and Group Common and Other.)

Dividend Approximately 40% to
70% of non-IFRS diluted
EPS on a long-term basis

Nokia�s Board of Directors is committed to proposing a growing dividend,
including for 2018.

Recurring free
cash flow

Slightly positive in full
year 2018 and clearly
positive in full year 2020

Recurring free cash flow is expected to improve over the longer-term, due to
lower cash outflows related to restructuring and network equipment swaps(1)
and improved operational results over time.

Recurring
annual cost
savings for
Nokia,
excluding
Nokia
Technologies

Approximately EUR 1.2
billion of recurring
annual cost savings in full
year 2018, of which
approximately EUR 800
million are expected from
operating expenses(1)

The reference period is full year 2015, in which the combined operating
expenses of Nokia and Alcatel-Lucent, excluding Nokia Technologies, were
approximately EUR 7.3 billion.
As a result of active efforts to drive 5G adoption, and in the interest of our
long-term strategy given the acceleration of 5G, in 2018 we expect to incur
approximately EUR 100 to 200 million of temporary incremental expenses
related to 5G customer trials that will partially reduce the positive impact from
the recurring annual cost savings.

Network
equipment
swaps

Approximately EUR 1.3
billion of charges and
cash outflows in total(1)
(update)

The charges related to network equipment swaps are being recorded as
non-IFRS exclusions, and therefore do not affect Nokia�s non-IFRS operating
profit.

(This is an update to earlier guidance for approximately EUR 1.4 billion of
charges and cash outflows in total.)

Non-IFRS
financial
income and
expenses

Expense of
approximately EUR 350
million in full year 2018
and approximately EUR
300 million over the
longer-term

Nokia�s outlook for non-IFRS financial income and expenses in full year 2018
and over the longer-term is expected to be influenced by factors including:

•  Net interest expenses related to interest-bearing
liabilities and defined benefit pension and other
post-employment benefit plans;

•  Foreign exchange fluctuations and hedging costs; and

•  Expenses related to the sale of receivables.
Non-IFRS tax
rate

Approximately 30% for
full year 2018 and 25%
over the longer-term

Nokia�s outlook for non-IFRS tax rate for full year 2018 and over the
longer-term is expected to be influenced by factors including the absolute level
of profits, regional profit mix and any further changes to our operating model.
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Nokia expects cash outflows related to taxes to be approximately EUR 400
million in full year 2018 and approximately EUR 450 million over the
longer-term until Nokia�s US or Finnish deferred tax assets are fully utilized.

Capital
expenditures

Approximately EUR 700
million in full year 2018
and approximately EUR
600 million over the
longer-term

Primarily attributable to Nokia�s Networks business, and consistent with the
depreciation of property, plant and equipment over the longer-term.

Nokia�s
Networks
business

Net sales Outperform its primary
addressable market in
2018 and over the
longer-term

For Nokia�s Networks business, Nokia expects net sales to outperform its
primary addressable market and operating margin to expand between full year
2018 and full year 2020.

Operating
margin

6-9% for full year 2018
and
9-12% for full year 2020

Nokia�s outlook for net sales and operating margin for Nokia�s Networks
business in 2018 and 2020 is expected to be influenced by factors including:

•  An approximately 1 to 3 percent decline in the primary
addressable market for Nokia�s Networks business in full year
2018, compared to 2017, on a constant currency basis;

2
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•  Customer demand for 5G, with commercial 5G
network deployments expected to begin near the end of 2018;

•  Improving market conditions in the second half of
2018, with particular acceleration in the fourth quarter in North
America, following weakness in the first half of 2018;

•  Growth in the primary addressable market for Nokia�s
Networks business in 2019 and 2020, on a constant currency
basis;

•  Our ability to scale our supply chain operations and to
procure certain standard components to meet increasing demand.
(This is an update to earlier commentary for our ability to scale
our supply chain operations to meet increasing demand);

•  Recovery actions to address increased price pressure,
including the ability to offset price erosion through cost
reductions;

•  The timing of completions and acceptances of certain
projects, particularly related to 5G;

•  Focus on targeted growth opportunities in attractive
adjacent markets;

•  Building a strong standalone software business;

•  Improved R&D productivity resulting from new ways
of working and the reduction of legacy platforms over time;

•  Lower support function costs, including IT and site
costs;

•  Uncertainty related to potential mergers or acquisitions
by our customers;

•  Product and regional mix; and

•  Competitive and other industry dynamics.

Nokia
Licensing
within Nokia
Technologies

Recurring net
sales

Grow at a compound
annual growth rate
(CAGR) of
approximately 10% over
the 3-year period ending
2020

Due to risks and uncertainties in determining the timing and value of
significant patent, brand and technology licensing agreements, Nokia believes
it is not appropriate to provide annual outlook ranges for Nokia Licensing
within Nokia Technologies. Although annual results are difficult to forecast,
Nokia expects net sales growth and operating margin expansion over the 3-year
period ending 2020.

Operating
margin

Expand to approximately
85% for full year 2020

In full year 2017, licensing net sales were approximately EUR 1.6 billion, of
which approximately EUR 300 million were non-recurring in nature and
related to catch-up net sales for prior years.
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Nokia�s outlook for net sales and operating margin for Nokia Licensing within
Nokia Technologies is expected to be influenced by factors including:

•  The timing and value of new patent licensing
agreements with smartphone vendors, automotive companies and
consumer electronics companies;

•  Renegotiation of expiring patent licensing agreements;

•  Increases or decreases in net sales related to existing
patent licensees;

•  Results in brand and technology licensing;

•  Costs to protect and enforce our intellectual property
rights; and

•  The regulatory landscape.

(1)For further details related to the cost savings and network equipment swaps guidance, please refer to the �Cost savings program� discussion in
the Financial results section.
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Nokia financial results

EUR million (except for EPS in EUR) Q3�18 Q3�17
YoY
change

Constant
currency
YoY
change

Q1-
Q3�18

Q1-
Q3�17

YoY
change

Constant
currency
YoY
change

Net sales 5 458 5 500 (1)% 1% 15 695 16 496 (5)% 0%
Nokia�s Networks business 4 888 4 823 1% 3% 13 906 14 696 (5)% 0%
Nokia Technologies 351 483 (27)% (27)% 1 077 1 099 (2)% (2)%
Group Common and Other 235 251 (6)% (4)% 765 812 (6)% (2)%
Non-IFRS exclusions (4) (38) (89)% (13) (59) (78)%
Gross profit 2 019 2 185 (8)% 5 684 6 546 (13)%
Operating profit/(loss) (54) (230) (611) (403)
Nokia�s Networks business 246 334 (26)% 358 1 064 (66)%
Nokia Technologies 290 390 (26)% 856 736 16%
Group Common and Other (49) (56) (153) (217)
Non-IFRS exclusions (541) (898) (40)% (1 671) (1 986) (16)%
Operating margin % (1.0)% (4.2)% 320bps (3.9)% (2.4)% (150)bps
Gross profit (non-IFRS) 2 141 2 365 (9)% 6 120 6 911 (11)%
Operating profit/(loss) (non-IFRS) 487 668 (27)% 1 060 1 583 (33)%
Operating margin % (non-IFRS) 8.9% 12.1% (320)bps 6.7% 9.6% (290)bps
Financial income and expenses (60) (63) (5)% (224) (496) (55)%
Income taxes (15) 102 89 (154)
Profit/(loss) for the period (127) (190) (33)% (752) (1 058) (29)%
EPS, diluted (0.02) (0.03) (0.13) (0.19)
Financial income and expenses
(non-IFRS) (48) (63) (24)% (247) (207) 19%
Income taxes (non-IFRS) (133) (90) 48% (275) (211) 30%
Profit/(loss) for the period (non-IFRS) 309 516 (40)% 532 1 159 (54)%
EPS, diluted (non-IFRS) 0.06 0.09 (33)% 0.10 0.20 (50)%
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Results are as reported and relate to continuing operations unless otherwise specified. The financial information in this report is unaudited.
Non-IFRS results exclude costs related to the acquisition of Alcatel-Lucent and related integration, goodwill impairment charges, intangible
asset amortization and other purchase price fair value adjustments, restructuring and associated charges and certain other items that may not be
indicative of Nokia�s underlying business performance. For details, please refer to note 2, �Non-IFRS to reported reconciliation�, in the notes to the
Financial statement information in this report. Change in net sales at constant currency excludes the effect of changes in exchange rates in
comparison to euro, our reporting currency. For more information on currency exposures, please refer to note 1, �Basis of Preparation�, in the
�Financial statement information� section in this report.
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Nokia, Q3 2018 compared to Q3 2017

EUR million
Net
sales

%
change

Gross
profit (R&D) (SG&A)

Other
income
and

(expenses)
Operating
profit/(loss)

Change in
operating
margin %

Financial
income
and

expenses
Income
taxes Profit/(loss)

Networks business 65 1% (106) 41 17 (40) (88) (190)bps
Nokia Technologies (132) (27)% (123) 30 (5) (1) (100) 190bps
Group Common and
Other (16) (6)% 5 (7) (1) 12 7 140bps
Eliminations 6 0 0 0 0 0
Nokia non-IFRS (76) (1)% (224) 63 11 (30) (181) (320)bps 15 (43) (207)
Non-IFRS exclusions 34 (89)% 59 25 (21) 293 357 (12) (74) 270
Nokia reported (42) (1)% (166) 89 (10) 263 176 320bps 3 (117) 63

Nokia non-IFRS and reported net sales were both down approximately 1% year-on-year. On a constant currency basis, Nokia non-IFRS net sales
were approximately flat year-on-year and Nokia reported net sales grew approximately 1% year-on-year.

Reported net sales in Q3 2018, excluding approximately EUR 180 million of non-recurring catch-up licensing net sales which benefitted the
year-ago period, grew by approximately 3% year on year, with growth across all 5 of our Networks business groups, as well as in Nokia
Technologies.

In our Networks business, our order backlog was strong at the end of Q3 2018, and we continue to expect commercial 5G network deployments
to begin near the end of 2018. We continued to build momentum in our end-to-end strategy, with approximately 43% of our sales pipeline now
comprised of cross-business group deals. We also continued to make progress with our strategy to diversify and grow by targeting attractive
adjacent markets, with continued year-on-year growth in net sales to large enterprise vertical and webscale customers.

In Nokia Technologies, we maintained our strong track record, with 19% year-on-year growth in recurring licensing net sales. The decrease in
net sales on a year-on-year basis was primarily due to the absence of approximately EUR 180 million of non-recurring catch-up licensing net
sales, which benefitted the year-ago period. We continued to make good progress on licensing agreements. Subsequent to the end of Q3 2018,
we extended our patent licensing agreement with Samsung and reiterated our financial guidance for Nokia Technologies.

Nokia non-IFRS diluted EPS amounted to EUR 0.06, compared to EUR 0.09 in the year-ago period. Non-IFRS diluted EPS, excluding
non-recurring catch-up licensing net sales which benefitted the year-ago period, declined by EUR 0.01 year-on-year. Adjusted for the
non-recurring item, the decline in non-IFRS diluted EPS was primarily driven by lower gross profit across all three reportable segments of our
Networks business, partially offset by improved recurring gross profit performance in our Technologies business, as well as lower operating
expenses in both Networks and Technologies.

Nokia reported diluted EPS amounted to negative EUR 0.02, compared to negative EUR 0.03 in the year-ago period, primarily driven by lower
restructuring and associated charges, lower impairment of assets and improved recurring gross profit performance in our Technologies business,
partially offset by the absence of approximately EUR 180 million of non-recurring catch-up licensing net sales, which benefitted the year-ago
period, lower gross profit across all three reportable segments in our Networks business and income taxes.
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Nokia, January-September 2018 compared to January-September 2017

EUR million
Net
Sales

%
change

Gross
profit (R&D) (SG&A)

Other
income
and

(expenses)
Operating
profit/(loss)

Change in
operating
margin %

Financial
income
and

expenses
Income
taxes Profit/(loss)

Networks business (790) (5)% (804) 92 71 (65) (706) (460)bps
Nokia Technologies (22) (2)% (1) 71 39 10 120 1 250bps
Group Common and
Other (47) (6)% 13 (6) 9 47 64 670bps
Eliminations 12 0 0 0 0 0
Nokia non-IFRS (847) (5)% (791) 158 119 (8) (523) (290)bps (40) (64) (627)
Non-IFRS exclusions 46 (78)% (70) 78 35 272 315 312 307 933
Nokia reported (801) (5)% (862) 235 155 263 (208) (150)bps 272 243 306

Nokia reported net sales decreased 5% year-on-year. On a constant currency basis, Nokia reported net sales were flat year-on-year.

In our Networks business, our order backlog was strong at the end of Q3 2018, and we continue to expect commercial 5G network deployments
to begin near the end of 2018. We continued to build momentum in our end-to-end strategy, with approximately 43% of our sales pipeline now
comprised of cross-business group deals. We also continued to make progress with our strategy to diversify and grow by targeting attractive
adjacent markets, with continued year-on-year growth in net sales to large enterprise vertical and webscale customers.

In Nokia Technologies, we maintained our strong track record, with 18% year-on-year growth in recurring licensing net sales. The decrease in
net sales on a year-on-year basis was primarily due to the absence of approximately EUR 170 million of non-recurring catch-up licensing net
sales, which benefitted the year-ago period. We continued to make good progress on licensing agreements. Subsequent to the end of Q3 2018,
we extended our patent licensing agreement with Samsung and reiterated our financial guidance for Nokia Technologies.

Nokia reported operating loss amounted to EUR 611 million, compared to EUR 403 million in the year-ago period. This was primarily driven by
lower gross profit across all three reportable segments in our Networks business and the absence of approximately EUR 170 million of
non-recurring catch-up licensing net sales, which benefitted the year-ago period, partially offset by lower restructuring and associated charges
and lower impairment of assets.

Nokia reported diluted EPS amounted to negative EUR 0.13, compared to negative EUR 0.19 in the year-ago period. This was primarily driven
by the absence of expenses related to the early redemption of debt, lower restructuring and associated charges and income taxes, partially offset
by lower gross profit across all three reportable segments in our Networks business and the absence of approximately EUR 170 million of
non-recurring catch-up licensing net sales, which benefitted the year-ago period.
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Cash and cash flow in Q3 2018

EUR million, at end of period Q3�18 Q2�18 QoQ change Q4�17 YTD change
Total cash and current financial investments(1) 5 612 5 861 (4)% 8 280 (32)%
Net cash and current financial investments(1) 1 876 2 144 (13)% 4 514 (58)%

(1) For details, please refer to note 9, �Net cash and current financial investments�, and note 15, �Performance measures�, in the �Financial statement
information� section in this report.

EUR billion

During the third quarter 2018, Nokia�s total cash and current financial investments decreased by EUR 249 million and Nokia�s net cash and
current financial investments (�net cash�) decreased by EUR 268 million.

In the third quarter 2018, net cash used in operating activities was EUR 82 million:

•  Nokia�s adjusted profit before changes in net working capital was EUR 354 million in the third quarter 2018.
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•  In the third quarter 2018, Nokia experienced a decrease in net cash related to net working capital of
approximately EUR 340 million, of which approximately EUR 110 million related to restructuring and associated
cash outflows, and approximately EUR 230 million related to an increase in inventories and an increase in receivables,
partially offset by an increase in liabilities.

•  The increase in receivables was approximately EUR 80 million.

•  The increase in inventories was approximately EUR 270 million, primarily due to our decision to ensure
sufficient flexibility to deliver higher levels of equipment sales.

•  The increase in liabilities was approximately EUR 130 million, primarily due to an increase in accounts
payable, partially offset by a decrease in contract liabilities.

In the third quarter 2018, net cash used in investing activities primarily related to capital expenditures of approximately EUR 140 million.

In the third quarter 2018, net cash used in financing activities primarily related to the payment of withholding tax of approximately EUR 130
million, associated with the dividend paid in the second quarter 2018.
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Cost savings program

The following table summarizes the financial information related to our cost savings program, as of the end of the third quarter 2018. Balances
related to previous Nokia and Alcatel-Lucent restructuring and cost savings programs have been included as part of this overall cost savings
program as of the second quarter 2016.

 In EUR million, approximately Q3�18
Opening balance of restructuring and associated liabilities 750
+ Charges in the quarter 70
- Cash outflows in the quarter 110
= Ending balance of restructuring and associated liabilities 710
of which restructuring provisions 580
of which other associated liabilities 130

Total expected restructuring and associated charges 1 750
- Cumulative recorded 1 560
= Charges remaining to be recorded 190

Total expected restructuring and associated cash outflows 2 100
- Cumulative recorded 1 300
= Cash outflows remaining to be recorded 800

The following table summarizes our full year 2016 and 2017 results and future expectations related to our cost savings program and network
equipment swaps.

Actual Expected amounts for

In EUR million, approximately
Cumulative
through FY 2018

FY 2019 and
beyond Total

rounded to the nearest EUR 50 Actual Actual the end of as of the end of as of the end of as of the end of
million 2016 2017 2017 Q2�18 Q3�18 Q2�18 Q3�18 Q2�18 Q3�18
Recurring annual cost savings 550 250 800 400 400 0 0 1 200 1 200
- operating expenses 350 150 500 300 300 0 0 800 800
- cost of sales 200 100 300 100 100 0 0 400 400
Restructuring and associated
charges 750 550 1 300 600 450 0 0 1 900 1 750
Restructuring and associated
cash outflows 400 550 950 650 600 650 550 2 250 2 100
Charges related to network
equipment swaps 150 450 600 650 600 150 100 1 400 1 300
Cash outflows related to
network equipment swaps 150 450 600 650 600 150 100 1 400 1 300

We now expect restructuring and associated charges to total EUR 1 750 million and the related cash outflows to total EUR 2 100 million, both of
which are EUR 150 million below our previous expectations. In addition, we now expect the charges and cash outflows related to network
equipment swaps to total EUR 1 300 million, which is EUR 100 million below our previous expectations.
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Note that the above expectations do not reflect the changes resulting from the cost reduction program announced on October 25, 2018. We
expect the program to result in a EUR 700 million reduction of non-IFRS annualized operating expenses and production overheads by the end of
2020 compared to the end of 2018, of which EUR 500 million is expected from operating expenses. The restructuring charges and cash outflows
are both expected to be EUR 900 million.

Under the cost reduction program announced on October 25, 2018, Nokia is targeting savings from a wide range of areas, including investments
in digitalization to drive more automation and productivity; further process and tool simplification; significant reductions in central support
functions to reach best-in-class cost levels; prioritization of R&D programs to best create long-term value; a sharp reduction of R&D in legacy
products; driving efficiency from further application of our best-in-class common software foundation and innovative software development
techniques; the consolidation of selected cross-company activities; and further reductions in real estate and other overhead costs.
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Operational highlights

Nokia delivered another solid quarter on its strategic commitments and its 5G leadership position across business groups and geographies.

In the first pillar of our strategy, leading in high-performance, end-to-end networks with communication service providers:

Nokia announced a $3.5 billion, multi-year 5G network deal with T-Mobile to accelerate the deployment of a nationwide 5G network in the US.

In September, AT&T named Nokia as one of its 5G suppliers with the US operator�s announcement to introduce mobile 5G in parts of five
additional cities � Houston, Jacksonville, Louisville, New Orleans, and San Antonio � this year.

Also in September, Nokia and Sprint gave the first live demonstration in the US of a 5G New Radio connection over a dual mode-capable
Massive MIMO radio.

Earlier in the quarter, Verizon and Nokia completed the first transmission of a 3GPP New Radio 5G signal to a receiver situated in a moving
vehicle. The test followed the companies� successful completion of a series of outdoor data sessions over the 5G New Radio standard.

Nokia announced plans to sell the majority of its IP Video business to Volaris Group of Canada. The transaction is expected to close in Q4 2018.

Idea Cellular in Delhi started to deploy Nokia�s cloud-native core technology as part of the operator�s digitalization effort to meet increasing data
and mobile broadband demand.

Ooredoo Myanmar selected Nokia to secure its telecom and ICT networks against cyber threats. Nokia analysed Ooredoo�s systems using Nokia�s
Security Risk Index. The Managed Security Service then implemented performance improvements to ensure that critical information assets are
adequately protected against known and unknown threats.

Early in the quarter, the consulting and research firm Analysys Mason rated Nokia�s AVA cognitive services platform as the leading Telco AI
Ecosystem (TAE) offering in the market. The firm highlighted the AVA platform�s ability, ahead of the competition, to give vendors a single
TAE in all their applications and intelligence across multiple systems and enable the optimization of end-to-end processes.

Nokia WING (Worldwide IoT Network Grid) momentum continued with Tele2 IoT launching a new global IoT platform, EnCore, making it the
first operator to offer commercial IoT services to enterprises using Nokia WING. In September, WING won the global �corporate award� in the
Smart Emerging Technologies category at ITU Telecom World.
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In the second pillar of our strategy, expanding network sales to select vertical markets needing high-performing, secure networks:

Nokia and Tencent signed an agreement to accelerate 5G webscale research and applications to benefit millions of Internet users in China.

In the third pillar of our strategy, developing a strong, standalone software business at scale:

Telia Company chose Nokia�s NetGuard Identity Access Manager to enhance security across the operator�s networks in Sweden and Finland.

Also in the quarter, the Nokia Intelligent Care Assistant solution was introduced into the Salesforce AppExchange. The Nokia Intelligent Care
Assistant integrates the Salesforce Service Cloud with Nokia�s Autonomous Customer Care software, equipping agents with insights to improve
customer satisfaction and enrich and monetize digital experiences.

In the quarter, Nokia Software demonstrated the strength of its portfolio, as well as orders and net sales momentum, by winning major accounts
including British Telecom, Telenor One Europe, STC, Telefonica UK and Sky.

In the fourth pillar of our strategy, which is now focused exclusively on licensing:

Nokia announced that it expects the licensing rate for the Nokia 5G standard essential patent (SEP) portfolio to be capped at EUR 3 per mobile
phone. Nokia said its licensing practices for licensing 5G SEPs for mobile phones will be consistent with its licensing undertakings made to
relevant standard setting organizations.

Nokia�s brand licensee, HMD Global, continued the refresh of its smartphone portfolio with the launch of the Nokia 6.1 Plus and Nokia 5.1 Plus.
HMD also announced plans to double its manufacturing capacity in India to satisfy demand.

In the quarter, Nokia expanded choice for licensees in the automotive sector by joining the Avanci licensing platform.

Also, subsequent to the end of Q3 2018, Nokia extended its patent licensing agreement with Samsung. Nokia will follow its existing practices
for disclosing patent licensing revenue in its quarterly announcements and expects that revenues for the extended agreement will start to be
recognized in the first quarter of 2019.
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Nokia�s Networks business, Q3 2018 compared to Q3 2017

EUR million Q3�18 Q3�17
YoY
change

Constant
currency

YoY change
Q1-
Q3�18

Q1-
Q3�17

YoY
change

Constant
currency

YoY change
Net sales 4 888 4 823 1% 3% 13 906 14 696 (5)% 0%
Ultra Broadband
Networks 2 125 2 099 1% 2% 6 038 6 500 (7)% (2)%
Global Services 1 380 1 359 2% 5% 3 945 4 168 (5)% 1%
IP Networks and
Applications 1 383 1 365 1% 3% 3 924 4 028 (3)% 3%
Gross profit 1 754 1 860 (6)% 4 935 5 739 (14)%
Gross margin % 35.9% 38.6% (270)bps 35.5% 39.1% (360)bps
R&D (877) (918) (4)% (2 685) (2 777) (3)%
SG&A (629) (646) (3)% (1 894) (1 965) (4)%
Other income and
expenses (2) 38 2 67
Operating
profit/(loss) 246 334 (26)% 358 1 064 (66)%
Ultra Broadband
Networks 75 78 (4)% 209 514 (59)%
Global Services 58 110 (47)% 62 289 (79)%
IP Networks and
Applications 113 146 (23)% 87 260 (67)%
Operating margin
% 5.0% 6.9% (190)bps 2.6% 7.2% (460)bps

Net sales by region
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EUR million Q3�18 Q3�17
YoY
change

Constant
currency

YoY change Q1-Q3�18 Q1-Q3�17
YoY
change

Constant
currency

YoY change
Asia-Pacific 1 043 1 003 4% 7% 2 874 3 075 (7)% 0%
Europe 1 040 1 042 0% 1% 3 065 3 109 (1)% 0%
Greater China 536 630 (15)% (14)% 1 527 1 812 (16)% (13)%
Latin America 312 304 3% 12% 900 829 9% 21%
Middle East &
Africa 428 478 (10)% (10)% 1 297 1 311 (1)% 5%
North America 1 531 1 367 12% 12% 4 243 4 559 (7)% 0%
Total 4 888 4 823 1% 3% 13 906 14 696 (5)% 0%
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Ultra Broadband Networks, Q3 2018 compared to Q3 2017

EUR million Q3�18 Q3�17
YoY
change

Constant
currency YoY

change
Q1-
Q3�18

Q1-
Q3�17

YoY
change

Constant
currency YoY

change
Net sales 2 125 2 099 1% 2% 6 038 6 500 (7)% (2)%
Mobile Networks 1 623 1 598 2% 2% 4 601 4 951 (7)% (2)%
Fixed Networks 502 501 0% 1% 1 437 1 549 (7)% (3)%
Gross profit 905 928 (2)% 2 682 3 100 (13)%
Gross margin % 42.6% 44.2% (160)bps 44.4% 47.7% (330)bps
R&D (562) (581) (3)% (1 699) (1 745) (3)%
SG&A (265) (290) (9)% (785) (883) (11)%
Other income and expenses (2) 20 11 43
Operating profit/(loss) 75 78 (4)% 209 514 (59)%
Operating margin % 3.5% 3.7% (20)bps 3.5% 7.9% (440)bps
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Ultra Broadband Networks net sales increased 1% year-on-year, primarily due to Mobile Networks, which benefitted from growth in small cells.
On a constant currency basis, Ultra Broadband Networks net sales increased 2%.

The decrease in Ultra Broadband Networks gross profit was primarily due to lower gross margin in Mobile Networks, partially offset by higher
net sales in Mobile Networks. Our gross margin performance in Mobile Networks was driven by price erosion exceeding cost erosion in
Asia-Pacific, North America, Greater China and Middle East & Africa, partially offset by favorable regional mix, with a larger proportion of net
sales in North America.

The decrease in Ultra Broadband Networks R&D expenses was primarily due to Mobile Networks, primarily due to progress related to Nokia�s
cost savings program and lower incentive accruals.
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The decrease in Ultra Broadband Networks SG&A expenses was primarily due to Mobile Networks, primarily due to progress related to Nokia�s
cost savings program, partially offset by higher costs related to 5G customer trials.

The net negative fluctuation in other income and expenses was primarily due to foreign exchange hedging.

Global Services, Q3 2018 compared to Q3 2017

EUR million Q3�18 Q3�17
YoY
change

Constant
currency YoY

change
Q1-
Q3�18

Q1-
Q3�17

YoY
change

Constant
currency YoY

change
Net sales 1 380 1 359 2% 5% 3 945 4 168 (5)% 1%
Gross profit 238 280 (15)% 611 828 (26)%
Gross margin % 17.2% 20.6% (340)bps 15.5% 19.9% (440)bps
R&D (21) (20) 5% (65) (64) 2%
SG&A (157) (155) 1% (481) (478) 1%
Other income and expenses (3) 6 (3) 3
Operating profit/(loss) 58 110 (47)% 62 289 (79)%
Operating margin % 4.2% 8.1% (390)bps 1.6% 6.9% (530)bps

Global Services net sales increased 2% year-on-year, primarily due to managed services and network planning and optimization, partially offset
by care. On a constant currency basis, Global Services net sales increased 5%.

The decrease in Global Services gross profit was primarily due to lower gross margin in network implementation and managed services,
partially offset by lower incentive accruals.
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IP Networks and Applications, Q3 2018 compared to Q3 2017

EUR million Q3�18 Q3�17
YoY
change

Constant
currency YoY

change
Q1-
Q3�18

Q1-
Q3�17

YoY
change

Constant
currency YoY

change
Net sales 1 383 1 365 1% 3% 3 924 4 028 (3)% 3%
IP/Optical Networks 1 021 1 011 1% 3% 2 889 2 949 (2)% 4%
IP Routing 609 682 (11)% (9)% 1 751 1 957 (11)% (5)%
Optical Networks 412 329 25% 29% 1 139 992 15% 22%
Nokia Software 363 354 3% 4% 1 034 1 079 (4)% 1%
Gross profit 611 652 (6)% 1 642 1 812 (9)%
Gross margin % 44.2% 47.8% (360)bps 41.8% 45.0% (320)bps
R&D (294) (316) (7)% (921) (969) (5)%
SG&A (207) (201) 3% (628) (604) 4%
Other income and expenses 3 11 (6) 21
Operating profit/(loss) 113 146 (23)% 87 260 (67)%
Operating margin % 8.2% 10.7% (250)bps 2.2% 6.5% (430)bps

IP Networks and Applications net sales increased 1% year-on-year. On a constant currency basis, IP Networks and Applications net sales
increased 3%.

The increase in IP/Optical Networks net sales was due to optical networks driven by our strong portfolio. This was partially offset by IP routing,
which was adversely affected by component shortages in our supply chain.

The increase in Nokia Software net sales was primarily due to emerging products and digital networks, partially offset by digital intelligence.
The net sales performance of Nokia Software continued to benefit from the investments to build a dedicated software sales force with
specialized go-to-market capabilities, supported by continued strong demand for our market leading software portfolio based on a cloud-native
Common Software Foundation.
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The decrease in IP Networks and Applications gross profit was primarily due to IP/Optical Networks, driven by IP routing, partially offset by
optical networks. The overall decrease in gross profit was primarily due to lower gross margin, partially offset by higher net sales. Our gross
margin performance in IP/Optical Networks was driven by price erosion exceeding cost erosion primarily in IP routing, as well as product mix,
with a higher proportion of optical networks net sales.

The decrease in IP Networks and Applications R&D expenses was due to both IP/Optical Networks and Nokia Software. The decrease in
IP/Optical networks was primarily due to net positive foreign exchange fluctuations. On a constant currency basis, IP/Optical Networks R&D
was approximately flat. The decrease in Nokia Software R&D expenses was primarily due to improved productivity, following the ongoing
implementation of a common software foundation.
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Nokia Technologies, Q3 2018 compared to Q3 2017

EUR million Q3�18 Q3�17
YoY
change

Constant
currency
YoY
change

Q1-
Q3�18

Q1-
Q3�17

YoY
change

Constant
currency
YoY
change

Net sales 351 483 (27)% (27)% 1 077 1 099 (2)% (2)%
Gross profit 350 473 (26)% 1 058 1 059 0%
Gross margin % 99.7% 97.9% 180bps 98.2% 96.4% 180bps
R&D (28) (58) (52)% (107) (178) (40)%
SG&A (30) (25) 20% (94) (133) (29)%
Other income and expenses (1) 0 (2) (12)
Operating profit/(loss) 290 390 (26)% 856 736 16%
Operating margin % 82.6% 80.7% 190bps 79.5% 67.0% 1 250bps
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Nokia Technologies net sales decreased 27% year-on-year, on both a reported and constant currency basis.

The entire EUR 351 million of net sales in the third quarter 2018 related to patent and brand licensing. Of the EUR 483 million of net sales in
the third quarter 2017, EUR 474 million related to patent and brand licensing and EUR 9 million related to digital health and digital media.

The decrease in Nokia Technologies net sales was primarily due to the absence of approximately EUR 180 million of non-recurring catch-up
licensing net sales, which benefitted the third quarter 2017. This was partially offset by higher recurring licensing net sales and higher brand
licensing net sales. Nokia Technologies non-recurring catch-up licensing net sales in the third quarter 2018 amounted to approximately zero. In
the third quarter 2017, non-recurring catch-up licensing net sales were approximately EUR 180 million.
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The decrease in Nokia Technologies gross profit was due to lower net sales.

The decrease in Nokia Technologies R&D expenses was primarily due to reduced investments in digital media, lower patent portfolio costs and
lower costs related to digital health following the sale of our digital health business on May 31, 2018.

The increase in Nokia Technologies SG&A expenses was primarily due to the absence of a reimbursement related to the settled arbitration,
which benefitted the third quarter 2017. Excluding this, SG&A expenses would have decreased year-on-year, primarily due to lower costs
related to digital health following the sale of our digital health business on May 31, 2018.
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Group Common and Other, Q3 2018 compared to Q3 2017

EUR million Q3�18 Q3�17
YoY
change

Constant
currency
YoY
change

Q1-
Q3�18

Q1-
Q3�17

YoY
change

Constant
currency
YoY
change

Net sales 235 251 (6)% (4)% 765 812 (6)% (2)%
Gross profit 37 32 16% 126 113 12%
Gross margin % 15.7% 12.7% 300bps 16.5% 13.9% 260bps
R&D (66) (59) 12% (207) (201) 3%
SG&A (51) (50) 2% (149) (158) (6)%
Other income and expenses 32 20 76 29
Operating profit/(loss) (49) (56) (153) (217)
Operating margin % (20.9)% (22.3)% 140bps (20.0)% (26.7)% 670bps
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Group Common and Other net sales decreased 6% year-on-year. On a constant currency basis, Group Common and Other net sales decreased
4%.

The decrease in Group Common and Other net sales was primarily due to Alcatel Submarine Networks, partially offset by Radio Frequency
Systems. The decrease in Alcatel Submarine Networks was primarily due to the completion of a large project, which benefitted the third quarter
2017.

The net positive fluctuation in other income and expenses was primarily due to gains in Nokia�s venture fund investments, partially offset by the
absence of the unwinding of a reinsurance contract, which benefitted the third quarter 2017.
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Shares

The total number of Nokia shares on September 30, 2018, equaled 5 635 550 659. On September 30, 2018, Nokia and its subsidiary companies
owned 43 937 039 Nokia shares, representing approximately 0.8% of the total number of Nokia shares and voting rights.
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Financial statement information
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Consolidated income statement (condensed, unaudited)

Reported Reported Reported Reported Non-IFRS Non-IFRS Non-IFRS Non-IFRS
EUR million Q3�18 Q3�17 Q1-Q3�18 Q1-Q3�17 Q3�18 Q3�17 Q1-Q3�18 Q1-Q3�17
Net sales (notes 2, 3, 4) 5 458 5 500 15 695 16 496 5 461 5 537 15 708 16 555
Cost of sales (3 439) (3 315) (10 010) (9 950) (3 320) (3 172) (9 588) (9 643)
Gross profit (notes 2, 3) 2 019 2 185 5 684 6 546 2 141 2 365 6 120 6 911
Research and development expenses (1 123) (1 212) (3 455) (3 690) (971) (1 034) (2 998) (3 156)
Selling, general and administrative expenses (870) (860) (2 530) (2 685) (710) (721) (2 138) (2 257)
Other income and expenses (80) (343) (310) (573) 28 58 76 84
Operating (loss)/profit (notes 2, 3) (54) (230) (611) (403) 487 668 1 060 1 583
Share of results of associated companies and joint
ventures 2 1 (6) (5) 2 1 (6) (5)
Financial income and expenses (note 10) (60) (63) (224) (496) (48) (63) (247) (207)
(Loss)/profit before tax (note 2) (112) (292) (841) (904) 442 605 807 1 370
Income tax (expense)/benefit (15) 102 89 (154) (133) (90) (275) (211)
(Loss)/profit from continuing operations (note 2) (127) (190) (752) (1 058) 309 516 532 1 159
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the parent (127) (192) (745) (1 088) 309 514 539 1 160
Non-controlling interests 0 2 (7) 30 0 2 (7) 0
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations (note 6) 48 9 211 (19) 0 0 0 0
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the parent 48 9 211 (19) 0 0 0 0
Non-controlling interests 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(Loss)/profit for the period (79) (181) (541) (1 078) 309 516 532 1 159
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the parent (79) (183) (533) (1 108) 309 514 539 1 160
Non-controlling interests 0 2 (7) 30 0 2 (7) 0

Earnings per share, EUR (for profit/(loss)
attributable to equity holders of the parent)
Basic earnings per share
Continuing operations (0.02) (0.03) (0.13) (0.19) 0.06 0.09 0.10 0.20
Discontinued operations 0.01 0.00 0.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(Loss)/profit for the period (0.01) (0.03) (0.10) (0.20) 0.06 0.09 0.10 0.20
Diluted earnings per share
Continuing operations (0.02) (0.03) (0.13) (0.19) 0.06 0.09 0.10 0.20
Discontinued operations 0.01 0.00 0.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(Loss)/profit for the period (0.01) (0.03) (0.10) (0.20) 0.06 0.09 0.10 0.20
Average number of shares (�000 shares)
Basic
Continuing operations 5 588

225
5 636
547

5 586
484

5 671
764 5 588 225 5 636 547 5 586 484 5 671 764

Discontinued operations 5 588
225

5 636
547

5 586
484

5 671
764 5 588 225 5 636 547 5 586 484 5 671 764

(Loss)/profit for the period 5 588
225

5 636
547

5 586
484

5 671
764 5 588 225 5 636 547 5 586 484 5 671 764

Diluted
Continuing operations 5 588

225
5 636
547

5 586
484

5 671
764 5 606 518 5 652 491 5 612 484 5 687 867

Discontinued operations 5 606
518

5 652
491

5 612
484

5 671
764 5 606 518 5 652 491 5 612 484 5 687 867

(Loss)/profit for the period 5 588
225

5 636
547

5 586
484

5 671
764 5 606 518 5 652 491 5 612 484 5 687 867

From continuing operations:
Depreciation and amortization (notes 2, 3) (356) (400) (1 088) (1 211) (124) (142) (382) (429)
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The above condensed consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes.
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income (condensed, unaudited)

Reported Reported Reported Reported
EUR million Q3�18 Q3�17 Q1-Q3�18 Q1-Q3�17

Loss for the period (79) (181) (541) (1 078)

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurements on defined benefit pensions 28 178 462 475
Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (8) (67) (121) (180)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Translation differences (41) (489) 229 (1 626)
Net investment hedges 38 124 (14) 400
Cash flow hedges 5 9 (77) 82
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (20) 0 (62) 0
Available-for-sale investments 0 (46) 0 (69)
Other increase, net 0 1 3 7
Income tax related to items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss (4) (22) 29 (91)

Other comprehensive (loss)/income, net of tax (2) (312) 449 (1 002)

Total comprehensive loss (81) (493) (92) (2 080)

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (80) (492) (84) (2 059)
Non-controlling interests (1) 0 (8) (20)

(81) (493) (92) (2 080)

Attributable to equity holders of the parent:
Continuing operations (128) (502) (295) (2 040)
Discontinued operations 48 10 211 (19)

(80) (492) (84) (2 059)

Attributable to non-controlling interests:
Continuing operations (1) 0 (8) (20)
Discontinued operations 0 0 0 0

(1) 0 (8) (20)

The above condensed consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes.
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Consolidated statement of financial position (condensed, unaudited)

EUR million
September
30, 2018

September
30, 2017

December
31, 2017

ASSETS
Goodwill 5 410 5 302 5 248
Other intangible assets 3 424 4 289 3 971
Property, plant and equipment 1 753 1 824 1 853
Investments in associated companies and joint ventures 125 112 128
Non-current financial investments(1) (notes 10, 14) 747 848 816
Deferred tax assets (notes 8, 14) 4 898 5 457 4 582
Other non-current financial assets (notes 10, 14) 335 267 215
Defined benefit pension assets (note 7) 4 233 3 892 3 979
Other non-current assets 316 319 368
Non-current assets 21 241 22 309 21 160
Inventories 3 179 3 028 2 646
Trade receivables (notes 10, 14) 4 784 6 833 6 880
Contract assets (note 14) 1 878 0 0
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 1 070 1 426 1 259
Social security, VAT and other indirect taxes 534 558 552
Divestment related receivables 73 81 79
Other (note 14) 464 786 628
Current income tax assets 483 315 475
Other financial assets (notes 10, 14) 253 307 302
Current financial investments(1) (notes 10, 14) 813 1 182 911
Cash and cash equivalents (notes 10, 14) 4 799 5 394 7 369
Current assets 17 259 18 485 19 841
Assets held for sale 34 40 23
Total assets 38 533 40 833 41 024

September
30, 2018

September
30, 2017

December
31, 2017

SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital 246 246 246
Share issue premium 429 439 447
Treasury shares (417) (1 369) (1 480)
Translation differences (712) (773) (932)
Fair value and other reserves (note 14) 1 070 783 1 094
Reserve for invested non-restricted equity 15 608 15 616 15 616
(Accumulated deficit)/retained earnings(2) (note 14) (1 253) 1 541 1 147
Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders of the parent 14 971 16 483 16 138
Non-controlling interests 68 74 80
Total equity 15 039 16 557 16 218
Long-term interest-bearing liabilities (notes 10, 12) 2 768 3 501 3 457
Deferred tax liabilities (notes 8, 14) 414 498 413
Defined benefit pension and post-retirement liabilities (note 7) 4 244 4 536 4 440
Contract liabilities (note 14) 1 139 0 0
Deferred revenue and other long-term liabilities 920 3 260 2 986
Advance payments and deferred revenue (note 14) 808 2 349 2 204
Other(2) (note 10) 113 912 782
Provisions (note 11) 612 845 766
Non-current liabilities 10 097 12 640 12 063
Short-term interest-bearing liabilities (notes 10, 12) 967 344 309
Other financial liabilities (note 10) 952 226 268
Current income tax liabilities(3) 206 368 383
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Trade payables (note 10) 4 026 3 541 3 996
Contract liabilities (note 14) 2 583 0 0
Accrued expenses, deferred revenue and other liabilities 3 695 6 023 6 666
Advance payments and deferred revenue (note 14) 462 3 182 3 513
Salaries, wages and social charges 1 327 1 419 1 551
Other 1 906 1 422 1 603
Provisions(3) (note 11) 969 1 134 1 122
Current liabilities 13 398 11 636 12 744
Total shareholders� equity and liabilities 38 533 40 833 41 024

Interest-bearing liabilities, EUR million 3 736 3 845 3 766
Shareholders� equity per share, EUR 2.68 2.94 2.89
Number of shares (1 000 shares, excluding treasury shares) 5 591 614 5 605 710 5 579 517

(1)Related to the adoption of IFRS 9, Financial Instruments on January 1, 2018, financial instruments previously presented within �Available for
sale investments� are now presented within �Non-current financial investments�, and financial instruments previously presented within �Available
for sale investments, liquid assets� and �Investments at fair value through profit and loss, liquid assets� are now presented within �Current financial
investments�. Despite the changes in the presentation of comparatives, IFRS 9 has not been adopted retrospectively.

(2)Comparatives for September 30, 2017, have been revised to reflect an adjustment of EUR 105 million made in the fourth quarter 2017 to
other long-term liabilities in relation to the NSB financial liability with an offsetting impact to retained earnings.

(3)Comparatives for September 30, 2017, have been revised to reflect the change in presentation of interest and penalties related to income taxes
from current income tax liabilities to provisions.

The above condensed consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows (condensed, unaudited)

EUR million Q3�18 Q3�17 Q1-Q3�18 Q1-Q3�17
Cash flow from operating activities
Loss for the period (79) (181) (541) (1 078)
Adjustments
Depreciation and amortization 356 400 1 088 1 211
Restructuring charges 43 242 198 447
Financial income and expenses 60 53 144 411
Income tax (benefit)/expense (33) (98) (210) 160
Other 7 171 99 184
Change in net working capital
(Increase)/decrease in receivables (84) (875) 193 (492)
Increase in inventories (273) (143) (576) (668)
Increase/(decrease) in non-interest-bearing liabilities 18 (72) (962) 540
Cash from/(used in) operations 15 (503) (567) 715
Interest received 11 7 53 41
Interest paid (18) (50) (134) (406)
Income taxes, net paid (90) (198) (378) (529)
Net cash used in operating activities (82) (744) (1 026) (179)
Cash flow from investing activities
Capital expenditures (137) (156) (501) (448)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 18 8 38 36
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired 0 (3) (31) (392)
Proceeds from disposal of businesses, net of disposed cash 0 (15) 0 (16)
Purchase of current financial investments (541) (530) (1 720) (2 154)
Proceeds from maturities and sale of current financial investments 597 609 1 816 2 772
Purchase of non-current financial investments (50) (28) (98) (64)
Proceeds from sale of non-current financial investments 19 79 80 161
Other (2) (8) (2) (20)
Net cash used in investing activities (96) (44) (418) (125)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from stock option exercises 0 1 0 1
Purchase of treasury shares 0 (244) 0 (657)
Purchase of equity instruments of subsidiaries 0 (8) 0 (38)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 0 0 75 2 124
Repayment of long-term borrowings (10) (25) (27) (2 044)
Proceeds from/(repayment of) short-term borrowings 81 (23) (19) (4)
Dividends paid and other contributions to shareholders (131) (127) (1 081) (970)
Net cash used in financing activities (60) (426) (1 052) (1 588)
Foreign exchange adjustment 44 (39) (74) (211)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (194) (1 253) (2 570) (2 103)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 4 993 6 647 7 369 7 497
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 4 799 5 394 4 799 5 394

Consolidated statement of cash flows combines cash flows from both the continuing and the discontinued operations. The figures in the
consolidated statement of cash flows cannot be directly traced from the statement of financial position without additional information as a result
of acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and net foreign exchange differences arising on consolidation.

The above condensed consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes.
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Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders� equity (condensed, unaudited)

EUR million
Share
capital

Share
issue

premium
Treasury
shares

Translation
difference

Fair value
and other
reserves

Reserve for
invested non-

restricted equity

(Accumulated
deficit)/retained

earnings

Equity
holders of
the parent

Non-
controlling
interest

Total
equity

January 1, 2017 246 439 (881) 483 488 15 731 3 588 20 094 881 20 975
Remeasurements on
defined benefit pension
plans, net of tax 0 0 0 0 291 0 0 291 0 291
Translation differences 0 0 0 (1 576) 0 0 0 (1 576) (50) (1 626)
Net investment hedges,
net of tax 0 0 0 320 0 0 0 320 0 320
Cash flow hedges, net
of tax 0 0 0 0 65 0 0 65 0 65
Available-for-sale
investments, net of tax 0 0 0 0 (63) 0 0 (63) 0 (63)
Other
increase/decrease, net 0 0 0 0 3 0 10 12 0 12
Loss for the period 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1 108) (1 108) 30 (1 078)
Total comprehensive
loss 0 0 0 (1 256) 295 0 (1 098) (2 059) (20) (2 080)
Share-based payment 0 59 0 0 0 0 0 59 0 59
Excess tax benefit on
share-based payment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Settlement of
performance and
restricted shares 0 (61) 154 0 0 (115) 0 (22) 0 (22)
Acquisition of treasury
shares 0 0 (642) 0 0 0 0 (642) 0 (642)
Stock options exercise 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1
Dividends 0 0 0 0 0 0 (963) (963) (7) (970)
Disposal of
subsidiaries 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (9) (9)
Acquisitions through
business combinations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 17 17
Acquisition of
non-controlling
interests 0 0 0 0 0 0 12 12 (788) (776)
Other movements 0 1 0 0 0 0 3 4 0 4
Total of other equity
movements 0 0 (488) 0 0 (115) (948) (1 551) (787) (2 338)
September 30, 2017 246 439 (1 369) (773) 783 15 616 1 541 16 483 74 16 557

December 31, 2017 246 447 (1 480) (932) 1 094 15 616 1 147 16 138 80 16 218
Adoption of IFRS 9
and IFRS 15 (note 14) 0 0 0 0 (252) 0 198 (54) 0 (54)
January 1, 2018 246 447 (1 480) (932) 843 15 616 1 345 16 083 80 16 163
Remeasurements on
defined benefit pension
plans, net of tax 0 0 0 0 336 0 0 336 0 336
Translation differences 0 0 0 231 0 0 0 231 (1) 230
Net investment hedges,
net of tax 0 0 0 (11) 0 0 0 (11) 0 (11)
Cash flow hedges, net
of tax 0 0 0 0 (61) 0 0 (61) 0 (61)

0 0 0 0 (52) 0 0 (52) 0 (52)
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Financial assets at fair
value through other
comprehensive
income, net of tax
(note 10)
Other
increase/decrease, net 0 0 0 0 5 0 1 6 0 6
Loss for the period 0 0 0 0 0 0 (533) (533) (7) (541)
Total comprehensive
loss 0 0 0 221 228 0 (532) (84) (8) (92)
Share-based payment 0 51 0 0 0 0 0 51 0 51
Excess tax benefit on
share-based payment 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 6
Settlement of
performance and
restricted shares 0 (76) 63 0 0 (8) 0 (21) 0 (21)
Cancellation of
treasury shares 0 0 1 000 0 0 0 (1 000) 0 0 0
Dividends 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1 063) (1 063) (5) (1 068)
Acquisition of
non-controlling
interests 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1) (1) 1 0
Total of other equity
movements 0 (18) 1 063 0 0 (8) (2 065) (1 028) (4) (1 032)
September 30, 2018 246 429 (417) (712) 1 070 15 608 (1 253) 14 971 68 15 039

The above condensed consolidated statement of changes in shareholders� equity should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes.
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Notes to Financial statements

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION

This unaudited, consolidated, condensed financial statement information of Nokia has been prepared in accordance with IAS 34, Interim
Financial Reporting. This consolidated, condensed financial statement information should be read in conjunction with the financial statements
for 2017, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as published by the IASB and adopted by the EU. The same accounting policies,
methods of computation and applications of judgment are followed in this financial statement information as was followed in the financial
statements for 2017 with the exception of changes resulting from adoption of IFRS 9, Financial Instruments and IFRS 15, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers as described in note 14, �New accounting standards�.

This financial report was authorized for issue by management on October 24, 2018.

Nokia presents financial information on reported, non-IFRS and constant currency basis. Non-IFRS measures presented in this document
exclude costs related to the acquisition of Alcatel-Lucent and related integration, goodwill impairment charges, intangible asset amortization and
other purchase price fair value adjustments, restructuring and associated charges and certain other items that may not be indicative of Nokia�s
underlying business performance. In order to allow full visibility on determining non-IFRS results, information on non-IFRS exclusions is
presented separately for each of the components of profit or loss.

Constant currency reporting provides additional information on change in financial measures on a constant currency basis in order to better
reflect the underlying business performance. Therefore, change in financial measures at constant currency excludes the impact of changes in
exchange rates in comparison to euro, our reporting currency.

Non-IFRS or constant currency financial measures should not be considered in isolation from, or as a substitute for, financial information
presented in compliance with IFRS, and either of these financial measures as used by Nokia may not be comparable to similarly titled measures
used by other companies or persons.

On July 3, 2017, Nokia and China Huaxin Post & Telecommunication Economy Development Center (�China Huaxin�) commenced operations of
the new joint venture Nokia Shanghai Bell (�NSB�). As part of the NSB definitive agreements, China Huaxin obtained the right to fully transfer its
ownership interest in NSB to Nokia in exchange for a future cash settlement. To reflect its conditional obligation to China Huaxin, Nokia
recorded the present value of the expected future cash settlement as a financial liability of EUR 737 million within other long-term liabilities and
derecognised its non-controlling interest balance of EUR 772 million related to NSB with the difference recorded within retained earnings. The
recognition of the present value discount on the financial liability is recorded as interest expense and any changes in the estimated future cash
settlement are recorded within financial income and expense. In the third quarter 2018, Nokia reclassified the financial liability from non-current
liabilities to current liabilities which is in line with the option exercise period.

Percentages and figures presented herein may include rounding differences and therefore may not add up precisely to the totals presented and
may vary from previously published financial information.
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New and amended standards and interpretations adopted

On January 1, 2018, Nokia adopted IFRS 9, Financial Instruments and IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The nature of new
standards, impact of adoption on Nokia�s consolidated financial statements and changes to Nokia�s accounting policies resulting from the
adoption are described in detail in note 14, �New accounting standards�. Other amendments and interpretations that became effective on January 1,
2018, did not have a material impact on Nokia�s consolidated financial statements.

Standards issued but not yet effective

IFRS 16, Leases, issued in January 2016, sets out the requirements for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. IFRS
16 provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for substantially all leases in
the consolidated statement of financial position. Nokia will adopt IFRS 16 on the effective date of January 1, 2019 using the cumulative catch-up
transition method, whereby the cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 16 will be recognized as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings on January 1, 2019 and comparative information will not be restated. Nokia is currently assessing the full impact of IFRS 16
but the initial expectation is that the main impact from adoption relates to the recognition and disclosure of Nokia�s real estate related operating
leases. In the consolidated financial statements for the quarter ended September 30, 2018, Nokia disclosed non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of EUR 1 022 million, of which the majority relates to real estate operating lease commitments. Nokia expects that the
non-cancellable operating lease commitments calculated in accordance with current lease accounting requirements will differ from the right of
use assets and related lease liabilities recorded as part of the adoption of IFRS 16.

Other revisions, amendments and interpretations to existing standards issued by the IASB that are not yet effective are not expected to have a
material impact on Nokia�s consolidated financial statements when adopted.
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Currency exposures, approximately (unaudited)

Q3�18 Q3�17 Q2�18
Net sales Total costs Net sales Total costs Net sales Total costs 

EUR ~25% ~30% ~25% ~30% ~25% ~30%
USD ~45% ~45% ~45% ~45% ~45% ~45%
CNY ~10% ~10% ~10% ~10% ~10% ~10%
Other ~20% ~15% ~20% ~15% ~20% ~15%
Total 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

End of Q3�18 balance sheet rate 1 EUR = 1.16 USD, end of Q3�17 balance sheet rate 1 EUR = 1.18 USD and end of Q2�18 balance sheet rate 1
EUR = 1.17 USD

Exchange rates

Nokia is a company with global operations and net sales derived from various countries and invoiced in various currencies. Therefore, our
business and results from operations are exposed to changes in exchange rates between the euro, our reporting currency, and other currencies,
such as the US dollar and the Chinese yuan. To mitigate the impact of changes in exchange rates on our results, we hedge operative forecasted
net foreign exchange exposures, typically within a 12-month horizon, and apply hedge accounting in the majority of cases.
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2. NON-IFRS TO REPORTED RECONCILIATION (unaudited)

In addition to information on our reported IFRS results, Nokia provides certain information on a non-IFRS, or underlying business performance,
basis. Non-IFRS measures presented in this document exclude costs related to the Acquisition of Alcatel-Lucent and related integration,
goodwill impairment charges, intangible asset amortization and other purchase price fair value adjustments, restructuring and associated charges
and certain other items that may not be indicative of Nokia�s underlying business performance. Nokia believes that the non-IFRS results provide
meaningful supplemental information to both management and investors regarding Nokia�s underlying business performance by excluding the
above-described items. These non-IFRS financial measures should not be viewed in isolation or as substitutes to the equivalent IFRS measure(s),
but should be used in conjunction with the most directly comparable IFRS measure(s) in the reported results.

Q3�18
EUR million Net sales

Cost of
sales

Research
and

development
expenses

Selling,
general and
administrative

expenses

Other
income
and

expenses
Operating
profit/(loss)

Financial
income
and

expenses

Income tax
(expense)/
benefit

Profit/(loss)
from

continuing
operations

Attributable
to the equity
holders of
the parent

Attributable
to non-

controlling
interests

Non-IFRS 5 461 (3 320) (971) (710) 28 487 (48) (133) 309 309 0
Release of
acquisition-related
fair value
adjustments to
deferred revenue
and inventory (3) (3) 1 (2) (2)
Amortization and
depreciation of
acquired intangible
assets and
property, plant and
equipment (1) (143) (88) (232) 54 (178) (178)
Transaction and
related costs,
including
integration costs (1) (71) (73) 16 (57) (57)
Restructuring and
associated charges (74) (75) 14 (61) (61)
Product portfolio
strategy costs (116) (9) (5) (130) 26 (103) (103)
Impairment of
assets (16) (16) 4 (13) (13)
Divestment of
businesses (16) (16) 4 (12) (12)
Gain on sale of
fixed assets 4 4 (1) 3 3
Change in
financial liability
to acquire NSB
non-controlling
interest 0 (31) (31) (31)
Release of
cumulative
exchange
differences related
to abandonment of
foreign operations 0 19 19 19
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Total non-IFRS
exclusions (4) (118) (152) (160) (108) (541) (12) 118 (436) (436) 0
Reported 5 458 (3 439) (1 123) (870) (80) (54) (60) (15) (127) (127) 0

Q3�17
EUR million Net sales

Cost of
sales

Research
and

development
expenses

Selling,
general and
administrative

expenses

Other
income
and

expenses
Operating
profit/(loss)

Financial
income
and

expenses

Income tax
(expense)/
benefit

Profit/(loss)
from

continuing
operations

Attributable
to the equity
holders of
the parent

Attributable
to non-

controlling
interests

Non-IFRS 5 537 (3 172) (1 034) (721) 58 668 (63) (90) 516 514 2
Release of
acquisition-related
fair value
adjustments to
deferred revenue
and inventory (18) (18) 5 (13) (13)
Amortization and
depreciation of
acquired intangible
assets and
property, plant and
equipment (2) (158) (99) 1 (258) 77 (180) (180)
Transaction and
related costs,
including
integration costs (2) (39) (42) 10 (32) (32)
Restructuring and
associated charges (1) (259) (260) 63 (197) (197)
Product portfolio
strategy costs (20) (139) (19) (1) (179) 36 (143) (143)
Impairment of
assets (141) (141) (141) (141)
Total non-IFRS
exclusions (38) (143) (177) (139) (401) (898) 0 192 (706) (706) 0
Reported 5 500 (3 315) (1 212) (860) (343) (230) (63) 102 (190) (192) 2
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Q1-Q3�18
EUR million

Net
sales

Cost of
sales

Research
and

development
expenses

Selling,
general and
administrative

expenses

Other
income
and

expenses
Operating
profit/(loss)

Financial
income
and

expenses

Income
tax

(expense)/
benefit

Profit/(loss)
from

continuing
operations

Attributable
to the equity
holders of
the parent

Attributable
to non-

controlling
interests

Non-IFRS 15
708 (9 588) (2 998) (2 138) 76 1 060 (247) (275) 532 539 (7)

Release of
acquisition-related
fair value
adjustments to
deferred revenue
and inventory (13) (13) 4 (8) (8)
Amortization and
depreciation of
acquired intangible
assets and
property, plant and
equipment (4) (433) (269) (706) 164 (542) (542)
Transaction and
related costs,
including
integration costs (5) (1) (122) (128) 28 (100) (100)
Restructuring and
associated charges (1) (261) (262) 53 (210) (210)
Product portfolio
strategy costs (413) (23) (5) (441) 89 (353) (353)
Impairment of
assets (48) (48) 11 (37) (37)
Divestment of
businesses (35) (35) 4 (30) (30)
Fair value changes
of legacy IPR fund (42) (42) 10 (32) (32)
Gain on sale of
fixed assets 4 4 (1) 3 3
Change in
financial liability
to acquire NSB
non-controlling
interest 0 (15) (15) (15)
Release of
cumulative
exchange
differences related
to abandonment of
foreign operations 0 38 1 39 39
Deferred tax
valuation
allowance 0 (12) (12) (12)
Operating model
integration 0 13 13 13
Total non-IFRS
exclusions (13) (422) (456) (393) (386) (1 671) 23 364 (1 284) (1 284) 0
Reported 15

695
(10
010) (3 455) (2 530) (310) (611) (224) 89 (752) (745) (7)

Q1-Q3�17
EUR million

Net
sales

Cost of
sales

Research
and

development

Selling,
general and
administrative

Other
income
and

Operating
profit/(loss)

Financial
income
and

Income
tax

(expense)/

Profit/(loss)
from

continuing

Attributable
to the equity
holders of

Attributable
to non-

controlling

Edgar Filing: TEMPLETON EMERGING MARKETS FUND - Form DEF 14A

87



expenses expenses expenses expenses benefit operations the parent interests
Non-IFRS 16

555 (9 643) (3 156) (2 257) 84 1 583 (207) (211) 1 159 1 160 0
Release of
acquisition-related
fair value
adjustments to
deferred revenue
and inventory (39) (39) 12 (27) (27)
Amortization and
depreciation of
acquired intangible
assets and
property, plant and
equipment (5) (479) (299) (782) 229 (554) (553) (1)
Transaction and
related costs,
including
integration costs (16) (127) (143) 30 (113) (113)
Restructuring and
associated charges (3) (499) (502) 122 (380) (380)
Product portfolio
strategy costs (20) (285) (55) (17) (376) 79 (298) (329) 31
Impairment of
assets (141) (141) (141) (141)
Early redemption
cost of debt 0 (220) 44 (176) (176)
Uncertain tax
position in
Germany 0 (69) (137) (206) (206)
Deferred tax
valuation
allowance 0 (77) (77) (77)
Operating model
integration 0 (245) (245) (245)
Total non-IFRS
exclusions (59) (307) (534) (428) (658) (1 986) (289) 57 (2 218) (2 248) 30
Reported 16

496 (9 950) (3 690) (2 685) (573) (403) (496) (154) (1 058) (1 088) 30

27

Edgar Filing: TEMPLETON EMERGING MARKETS FUND - Form DEF 14A

88



3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (unaudited)

Nokia has two businesses: Nokia�s Networks business and Nokia Technologies, and four reportable segments for financial reporting purposes:
(1) Ultra Broadband Networks, (2) Global Services and (3) IP Networks and Applications within Nokia�s Networks business; and (4) Nokia
Technologies. Segment-level information for Group Common and Other is also presented.

Nokia has aggregated Mobile Networks and Fixed Networks operating segments to one reportable segment, Ultra Broadband Networks; and
IP/Optical Networks and Nokia Software(1) operating segments to one reportable segment, IP Networks and Applications. The aggregated
operating segments have similar economic characteristics, such as long-term margins; have similar products, production processes, distribution
methods and customers; and operate in a similar regulatory environment.

The President and CEO is the chief operating decision maker and monitors the operating results of operating and reportable segments for the
purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Key financial performance measures of the segments
include primarily net sales and operating profit. The evaluation of segment performance and allocation of resources is based on non-IFRS
operating profit.

Accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in note 2, �Significant accounting policies� of our Annual Report for 2017.
Inter-segment revenues and transfers are accounted for as if the revenues were to third parties, that is, at current market prices. Non-IFRS
exclusions are not allocated to the segments.

Ultra Broadband Networks
Ultra Broadband Networks comprises Mobile Networks and Fixed Networks operating segments.

The Mobile Networks operating segment offers an industry-leading portfolio of end-to-end mobile networking solutions comprising hardware
and software for communications service providers, enterprises and related markets/verticals, such as public safety and Internet of Things (�IoT�).

The Fixed Networks operating segment provides copper and fiber access products, solutions and services. The portfolio allows for a customized
combination of technologies that brings fiber to the most economical point for the customer.

Global Services

Global Services operating segment provides a wide range of professional services with multi-vendor capabilities, covering network planning and
optimization, systems integration as well as company-wide managed services. It also provides network implementation and care services for
mobile networks, using the strength of its global service delivery for quality, speed and efficiency.
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IP Networks and Applications
IP Networks and Applications comprises IP/Optical Networks and Nokia Software operating segments.

The IP/Optical Networks operating segment provides the key IP routing and optical transport systems, software and services to build high
capacity network infrastructure for the internet and global connectivity.

The Nokia Software operating segment offers software solutions spanning customer experience management, network operations and
management, communications and collaboration, policy and charging, as well as Cloud, IoT, security, and analytics platforms that enable digital
services providers and enterprises to accelerate innovation, monetize services, and optimize their customer experience.

Nokia Technologies
The Nokia Technologies operating segment, building on decades of innovation and R&D leadership in technologies
used in virtually all mobile devices used today, is expanding Nokia patent licensing business, reintroducing the Nokia
brand to smartphones through brand licensing, and establishing a technology licensing business. The majority of net
sales and related costs and expenses attributable to licensing and patenting the separate patent portfolios of Nokia
Technologies, Nokia�s Networks business, and Nokia Bell Labs are recorded in Nokia Technologies. Each reportable
segment continues to separately record its own research and development expenses.

Group Common and Other
Group Common and Other includes Alcatel-Lucent Submarine Networks and Radio Frequency Systems, both of
which are being managed as separate entities. In addition, Group Common and Other includes Nokia Bell Labs�
operating expenses, as well as certain corporate-level and centrally managed operating expenses.

(1) Applications & Analytics operating segment was renamed as Nokia Software on February 1, 2018.
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Q3�18
EUR million

Ultra
Broadband
Networks(1) Global Services

IP Networks
and

Applications(2)

Nokia�s
Networks

business Total
Nokia

Technologies

Group
Common and

Other Eliminations Non-IFRS total
Non-IFRS
exclusions(3) Nokia Total

Net sales 2 125 1 380 1 383 4 888 351 235 (14) 5 461 (4) 5 458
Cost of sales (1 221) (1 141) (772) (3 134) (2) (198) 14 (3 320) (118) (3 439)
Gross profit 905 238 611 1 754 350 37 0 2 141 (122) 2 019
% of net sales 42.6% 17.2% 44.2% 35.9% 99.7% 15.7% 39.2% 37.0%
Research and
development
expenses (562) (21) (294) (877) (28) (66) 0 (971) (152) (1 123)
Selling,
general and
administrative
expenses (265) (157) (207) (629) (30) (51) 0 (710) (160) (870)
Other income
and expenses (2) (3) 3 (2) (1) 32 0 28 (108) (80)
Operating
profit/(loss) 75 58 113 246 290 (49) 0 487 (541) (54)
% of net sales 3.5% 4.2% 8.2% 5.0% 82.6% (20.9)% 8.9% (1.0)%
Depreciation
and
amortization (57) (16) (34) (106) (5) (13) 0 (124) (232) (356)
Share of
results of
associated
companies and
joint ventures 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 2
EBITDA 134 73 147 354 295 (36) 0 613 (309) 304

(1)  Mobile Networks net sales of EUR 1 623 million and Fixed Networks net sales of EUR 502 million.

(2)  IP Routing net sales of EUR 609 million, Optical Networks net sales of EUR 412 million and Nokia Software
net sales of EUR 363 million.

(3)  Non-IFRS results exclude costs related to the Alcatel-Lucent transaction and related integration, goodwill
impairment charges, intangible asset amortization and purchase price related items, restructuring and associated
charges, and certain other items that may not be indicative of Nokia�s underlying business performance.

Q3�17
EUR million

Ultra
Broadband
Networks(1) Global Services

IP Networks
and

Applications(2)

Nokia�s
Networks

business Total
Nokia

Technologies

Group
Common and

Other Eliminations Non-IFRS total
Non-IFRS
exclusions(3) Nokia Total

Net sales 2 099 1 359 1 365 4 823 483 251 (20) 5 537 (38) 5 500
Cost of sales (1 170) (1 080) (713) (2 963) (10) (219) 20 (3 172) (143) (3 315)
Gross profit 928 280 652 1 860 473 32 0 2 365 (181) 2 185
% of net sales 44.2% 20.6% 47.8% 38.6% 97.9% 12.7% 42.7% 39.7%
Research and
development
expenses (581) (20) (316) (918) (58) (59) 0 (1 034) (177) (1 212)
Selling,
general and
administrative
expenses (290) (155) (201) (646) (25) (50) 0 (721) (139) (860)
Other income
and expenses 20 6 11 38 0 20 0 58 (401) (343)
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Operating
profit/(loss) 78 110 146 334 390 (56) 0 668 (898) (230)
% of net sales 3.7% 8.1% 10.7% 6.9% 80.7% (22.3)% 12.1% (4.2)%
Depreciation
and
amortization (69) (20) (40) (129) (2) (11) 0 (142) (258) (400)
Share of
results of
associated
companies and
joint ventures 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 1
EBITDA 148 130 186 464 392 (45) 0 810 (640) 171

(1)  Mobile Networks net sales of EUR 1 598 million and Fixed Networks net sales of EUR 501 million.

(2)  IP Routing net sales of EUR 682 million, Optical Networks net sales of EUR 329 million and Nokia Software
net sales of EUR 354 million.

(3)  Non-IFRS results exclude costs related to the Alcatel-Lucent transaction and related integration, goodwill
impairment charges, intangible asset amortization and purchase price related items, restructuring and associated
charges, and certain other items that may not be indicative of Nokia�s underlying business performance.
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Q1-Q3�18
EUR million

Ultra
Broadband
Networks(1) Global Services

IP Networks
and

Applications(2)

Nokia�s
Networks

business Total
Nokia

Technologies

Group
Common and

Other Eliminations Non-IFRS total
Non-IFRS
exclusions(3) Nokia Total

Net sales 6 038 3 945 3 924 13 906 1 077 765 (41) 15 708 (13) 15 695
Cost of sales (3 356) (3 333) (2 282) (8 971) (19) (639) 41 (9 588) (422) (10 010)
Gross profit 2 682 611 1 642 4 935 1 058 126 0 6 120 (436) 5 684
% of net sales 44.4% 15.5% 41.8% 35.5% 98.2% 16.5% 39.0% 36.2%
Research and
development
expenses (1 699) (65) (921) (2 685) (107) (207) 0 (2 998) (456) (3 455)
Selling,
general and
administrative
expenses (785) (481) (628) (1 894) (94) (149) 0 (2 138) (393) (2 530)
Other income
and expenses 11 (3) (6) 2 (2) 76 0 76 (386) (310)
Operating
profit/(loss) 209 62 87 358 856 (153) 0 1 060 (1 671) (611)
% of net sales 3.5% 1.6% 2.2% 2.6% 79.5% (20.0)% 6.7% (3.9)%
Depreciation
and
amortization (173) (49) (110) (333) (15) (33) 0 (382) (706) (1 088)
Share of
results of
associated
companies and
joint ventures (6) 0 0 (6) 0 0 0 (6) 0 (6)
EBITDA 377 111 197 685 871 (120) 0 1 436 (965) 471

(1)  Mobile Networks net sales of EUR 4 601 million and Fixed Networks net sales of EUR 1 437 million.

(2)  IP Routing net sales of EUR 1 751 million, Optical Networks net sales of EUR 1 139 million and Nokia
Software net sales of EUR 1 034 million.

(3)  Non-IFRS results exclude costs related to the Alcatel-Lucent transaction and related integration, goodwill
impairment charges, intangible asset amortization and purchase price related items, restructuring and associated
charges, and certain other items that may not be indicative of Nokia�s underlying business performance.

Q1-Q3�17
EUR million

Ultra
Broadband
Networks(1) Global Services

IP Networks
and

Applications(2)

Nokia�s
Networks

business Total
Nokia

Technologies

Group
Common and

Other Eliminations Non-IFRS total
Non-IFRS
exclusions(3) Nokia Total

Net sales 6 500 4 168 4 028 14 696 1 099 812 (53) 16 555 (59) 16 496
Cost of sales (3 400) (3 340) (2 216) (8 957) (40) (699) 53 (9 643) (307) (9 950)
Gross profit 3 100 828 1 812 5 739 1 059 113 0 6 911 (366) 6 546
% of net sales 47.7% 19.9% 45.0% 39.1% 96.4% 13.9% 41.7% 39.7%
Research and
development
expenses (1 745) (64) (969) (2 777) (178) (201) 0 (3 156) (534) (3 690)
Selling,
general and
administrative
expenses (883) (478) (604) (1 965) (133) (158) 0 (2 257) (428) (2 685)
Other income
and expenses 43 3 21 67 (12) 29 0 84 (658) (573)
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Operating
profit/(loss) 514 289 260 1 064 736 (217) 0 1 583 (1 986) (403)
% of net sales 7.9% 6.9% 6.5% 7.2% 67.0% (26.7)% 9.6% (2.4)%
Depreciation
and
amortization (201) (60) (125) (385) (10) (34) 0 (429) (782) (1 211)
Share of
results of
associated
companies and
joint ventures 5 0 0 5 (10) 0 0 (5) 0 (5)
EBITDA 720 349 385 1 454 735 (183) 0 2 006 (1 203) 803

(1)  Mobile Networks net sales of EUR 4 951 million and Fixed Networks net sales of EUR 1 549 million.

(2)  IP Routing net sales of EUR 1 957 million, Optical Networks net sales of EUR 992 million and Nokia
Software net sales of EUR 1 079 million.

(3)  Non-IFRS results exclude costs related to the Alcatel-Lucent transaction and related integration, goodwill
impairment charges, intangible asset amortization and purchase price related items, restructuring and associated
charges, and certain other items that may not be indicative of Nokia�s underlying business performance.

30

Edgar Filing: TEMPLETON EMERGING MARKETS FUND - Form DEF 14A

94



4. NET SALES BY GEOGRAPHIC AREA (unaudited)

EUR million Q3�18 Q3�17 YoY change Q1-Q3�18 Q1-Q3�17
YoY
change

Asia-Pacific 1 050 1 009 4% 2 892 3 102 (7)%
Europe 1 520 1 694 (10)% 4 573 4 747 (4)%
Greater China 540 638 (15)% 1 543 1 839 (16)%
Latin America 323 311 4% 927 851 9%
Middle East & Africa 432 479 (10)% 1 310 1 319 (1)%
North America 1 594 1 370 16% 4 449 4 638 (4)%
Total 5 458 5 500 (1)% 15 695 16 496 (5)%

5. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS (unaudited)

Acquisitions

The acquisitions completed during 2018 did not have a material impact to the consolidated statement of financial position, comprehensive
income or cash flows. The provisional aggregate purchase price, aggregate net assets and aggregate goodwill amount to EUR 29 million,
negative EUR 1 million and EUR 30 million, respectively. The purchase accounting for the acquisitions is ongoing and Nokia will conduct
additional analysis that may result in adjustments in the fourth quarter of 2018.

Unium Inc.

On March 15, 2018 Nokia acquired 100% ownership interest in Unium Inc., a US-based software company that specializes in solving complex
wireless networking problems for use in mission-critical and residential Wi-Fi applications. The goodwill arising from the acquisition was
allocated to Fixed Networks operating segment.

SpaceTime Insight Inc.

On April 30, 2018 Nokia acquired the business of SpaceTime Insight Inc., a US-based software company that provides machine
learning-powered analytics and IoT applications for some of the world�s largest transportation, energy and utilities organizations. The goodwill
arising from the acquisition was allocated to Nokia Software operating segment.

Disposals

On May 31, 2018, Nokia closed the sale of its Digital Health business. The disposal comprised 100% of the share capital of Nokia Technologies
(France) SA and its subsidiaries. Nokia recognized a loss of EUR 18 million related to the transaction within other income and expenses.

On September 13, 2018, Nokia and Volaris Group Inc. announced that they have entered into an agreement on the sale and transfer of the
majority of Nokia�s IP Video business to Velocix, a new independent pure play streaming technology company in which Nokia will remain a
minority shareholder. The planned deal is expected to close during the fourth quarter 2018. In the third quarter 2018 Nokia recognized a loss of
EUR 16 million related to a contract obligation related to the transaction within other income and expenses.
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6. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (unaudited)

Discontinued operations include the continuing financial effects of the HERE business and the Devices & Services business, the disposals of
which were completed on December 4, 2015 and April 25, 2014, respectively.

Results of discontinued operations

EUR million Q3�18 Q3�17
Q1-
Q3�18 Q1-Q3�17

Net sales 0 0 0 0
Cost of sales 0 0 0 0
Gross profit 0 0 0 0
Operating income/(expenses) 0 1 11 (27)
Operating profit/(loss) 0 1 10 (26)
Financial income and expense (1) 6 80 7
(Loss)/profit before tax 0 7 90 (20)
Income tax benefit/(expense) 48 (4) 121 (6)
Profit/(loss) for the period, ordinary activities 48 4 211 (25)
Gain on the sale of businesses, net of tax 0 6 0 5
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations 48 9 211 (19)

Cash flows from discontinued operations

Reported

EUR million
Reported
Q3�18

Reported
Q3�17

Q1-
Q3�18

Reported
Q1-Q3�17

Net cash from/(used in) operating activities 1 (1) (33) (4)
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities 0 (15) 10 (16)
Net cash flow for the period 1 (16) (23) (20)

The results of discontinued operations in 2018 mostly relate to a resolution reached in the tax dispute concerning the applicability of withholding
tax in respect of payments by Nokia India Private Limited to Nokia Corporation for the supply of operating software in Devices & Services
business as well as a release of uncertain tax positions related to HERE business. The cash flows of discontinued operations in 2018 mostly
relate to aforementioned resolution in the tax dispute.
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7. PENSIONS AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (unaudited)

Nokia operates a number of post-employment plans in various countries including both defined contribution and defined benefit plans. Defined
benefit plans include pension plans and post-retirement welfare benefit plans, providing post-retirement healthcare benefits and life insurance
coverage. Defined benefit plans expose Nokia to actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest rate risk, and life expectancy risk. The
characteristics and associated risks of the defined benefit plans vary depending on legal, fiscal, and economic requirements in each country.

96% of Nokia�s defined benefit obligation and 98% of plan assets fair values were remeasured as of September 30, 2018. Nokia�s pension and
post-retirement plans in the United States have been remeasured by updated valuations from an external actuary and the main pension plans
outside of the U.S. (in Germany, United Kingdom, Switzerland and Belgium) have been remeasured based upon updated asset valuations and
changes in the discount rates during the reporting period. The impact of not remeasuring other pension and post-employment obligations is
considered not material.

Change in pension and post-retirement net asset/(liability) recognized

September 30, 2018 September 30, 2017 December 31, 2017

EUR million
Pension
benefits(1)

Post-
retirement
benefits Total

Pension
benefits(1)

Post-
retirement
benefits Total

Pension
benefits(1)

Post-
retirement
benefits Total

Net asset/(liability)
recognized at January 1 1 525 (1 986) (461) 1 284 (2 482) (1 198) 1 284 (2 482) (1 198)
Current service cost (130) 0 (130) (132) 0 (132) (180) 0 (180)
Net interest
income/(expense) 37 (47) (10) 33 (63) (30) 44 (81) (37)
Curtailment (41) 0 (41) (33) (1) (34) (5) (1) (6)
Pension and healthcare plan
amendments 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 9
Total expense recognized
in the income statement (134) (47) (181) (132) (64) (196) (132) (82) (214)
Actuarial gains/(losses) for
the period 370 192 562 584 110 694 823 133 956
Change in asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included
in net interest (expense) (100) 0 (100) (221) 2 (219) (233) 0 (233)
Total recognized in other
comprehensive income 270 192 462 363 112 475 590 133 723
Exchange differences 97 (67) 30 (175) 262 87 (240) 297 57
Contributions and benefits
paid 141 (6) 135 207 0 207 246 4 250
Other movements(2) 4 0 4 (7) (12) (19) (223) 144 (79)
Net asset/(liability)
recognized at the end of
the period 1 903 (1 914) (11) 1 540 (2 184) (644) 1 525 (1 986) (461)
of which:
- Defined benefit pension
assets 4 233 0 4 233 3 892 0 3 892 3 979 0 3 979
- Defined benefit pension
and post-retirement
liabilities (2 330) (1 914) (4 244) (2 352) (2 184) (4 536) (2 454) (1 986) (4 440)
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(1)Includes pensions, retirement indemnities and end-of-service gratuities.

(2)Includes Section 420 transfers, medicare subsidies, acquisition through business combinations and other transfers.

Weighted average discount rates
September
30, 2018

September
30, 2017

December
31, 2017

U.S. Pension 3.9 3.4 3.3
U.S. Post-retirement healthcare and other 3.8 3.1 3.1
U.S. Post-retirement group life 4.0 3.5 3.4
Euro - Pension(1) 1.5 1.6 1.3
U.K. - Pension 2.7 2.6 2.5

Funded status
September
30, 2018

September
30, 2017

December
31, 2017

Defined benefit obligation (24 021) (25 804) (25 498)
Fair value of plan assets 24 643 25 608 25 536
Funded status 622 (196) 38
Impact of the asset ceiling (633) (448) (499)
Net liability recognized at end of period (11) (644) (461)

(1)Includes pensions, retirement indemnities and end-of service gratuities.
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8. DEFERRED TAXES (unaudited)

At September 30, 2018, Nokia had recognized deferred tax assets of EUR 4.9 billion. The deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences can be utilized in the
relevant jurisdictions. The majority of Nokia�s recognized deferred tax assets relate to unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary
differences in Finland (EUR 2.5 billion) and the United States (EUR 1.2 billion). Based on the recent years� profitability in Finland and the
United States, excluding certain integration costs in Finland related to the acquisition of Alcatel Lucent in 2016, and the latest forecasts of future
financial performance, Nokia has been able to establish a pattern of sufficient tax profitability in Finland and the United States to conclude that it
is probable that Nokia will be able to utilize the tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences in the foreseeable future.

At September 30, 2018, Nokia had unrecognized deferred tax assets of approximately EUR 5 billion related to unused tax losses, tax credits and
deductible temporary differences. The majority of the unrecognized deferred tax assets relate to France (approximately EUR 4 billion). These
deferred tax assets have not been recognized due to uncertainty regarding their utilization. A significant portion of the French unrecognized
deferred tax assets are indefinite in nature and available against future French tax liabilities, subject to a limitation of 50% of annual taxable
profits.

At September 30, 2018, Nokia had deferred tax liabilities of EUR 0.4 billion. The majority of the deferred tax liabilities relate to the fair value
adjustments on the purchase accounting of Alcatel-Lucent acquisition.

9. NET CASH AND CURRENT FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (unaudited)

EUR million
September 30,

2018
September 30,

2017
June 30,
2018

December 31,
2017

Current financial investments 813 1 182 867 911
Cash and cash equivalents 4 799 5 394 4 993 7 369
Total cash and current financial investments 5 612 6 577 5 861 8 280

Long-term interest-bearing liabilities 2 768 3 501 2 771 3 457
Short-term interest-bearing liabilities 967 344 946 309
Interest-bearing liabilities 3 736 3 845 3 717 3 766

Net cash and current financial investments 1 876 2 731 2 144 4 514
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10. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (unaudited)

Financial assets and liabilities recorded at fair value are categorized based on the amount of unobservable inputs used to measure their fair value.
Three hierarchical levels are based on an increasing amount of judgment associated with the inputs used to derive fair valuation for these assets
and liabilities; Level 1 being market values for exchange traded products, Level 2 being primarily based on quotes from third-party pricing
services and Level 3 requiring most management judgment. For more information about the valuation methods and principles, refer to note 2,
�Significant accounting policies� and note 24, �Fair value of financial instruments�, of our Annual Report for 2017. For information on changes in
classification related to the adoption of IFRS 9, refer to note 14, �New accounting standard�. Items carried at fair value in the following table are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

Carrying amounts
EURm Fair value through profit or loss Fair value through other comprehensive income Fair value
At September 30, 2018 Amortized cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Total
Non-current financial
investments 0 11 0 736 0 0 0 747 747
Other non-current
financial assets 174 0 96 9 0 56 0 335 320
Other current financial
assets including
derivatives 18 0 87 0 0 148 0 253 253
Trade receivables 0 0 0 0 0 4 784 0 4 784 4 784
Current financial
investments 127 0 287 0 0 399 0 813 813
Cash and cash equivalents 3 851 0 948 0 0 0 0 4 799 4 799
Total financial assets 4 170 11 1 418 745 0 5 387 0 11 731 11 716
Long-term interest-bearing
liabilities 2 768 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 768 2 874
Other long-term financial
liabilities 0 0 22 15 0 0 0 37 37
Short-term interest-bearing
liabilities 967 0 0 0 0 0 0 967 977
Other financial liabilities
including derivatives 0 0 252 700 0 0 0 952 952
Trade payables 4 026 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 026 4 026
Total financial liabilities 7 761 0 274 715 0 0 0 8 750 8 866

Carrying amounts
EURm Fair value through profit or loss Fair value through other comprehensive income Fair value
At December 31, 2017 Amortized cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Total
Non-current
available-for-sale
investments 119 0 0 0 16 137 544 816 816
Other non-current
financial assets 108 0 99 8 0 0 0 215 195
Other current financial
assets including
derivatives 106 0 196 0 0 0 0 302 302
Trade receivables 6 880 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 880 6 880
Available-for-sale
investments, liquid assets 0 0 0 0 0 911 0 911 911
Cash and cash equivalents 5 407 0 1 962 0 0 0 0 7 369 7 369
Total financial assets 12 620 0 2 257 8 16 1 048 544 16 493 16 473

3 457 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 457 3 574
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Long-term interest-bearing
liabilities
Other long-term financial
liabilities 44 0 0 672 0 0 0 716 716
Short-term
interest-bearing liabilities 309 0 0 0 0 0 0 309 309
Other financial liabilities
including derivatives 0 0 268 0 0 0 0 268 268
Trade payables 3 996 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 996 3 996
Total financial liabilities 7 806 0 268 672 0 0 0 8 746 8 863
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Level 3 Financial assets include a large number of investments in unlisted equities and unlisted venture funds, including investments managed
by Nokia Growth Partners specializing in growth-stage investing and by BlueRun Ventures focusing on early stage opportunities.

Level 3 Financial liabilities include a conditional obligation to China Huaxin related to Nokia Shanghai Bell.

EURm
Level 3 Financial

Assets
Level 3 Financial

Liabilities
Balance at December 31, 2017 552 (672)
Adoption of IFRS 9(1) 122 0
Balance at January 1, 2018 674 (672)
Net gains/(losses) in income statement 43 (41)
Additions 93 0
Deductions (64) 7
Other movements (1) (9)
Balance at September 30, 2018 745 (715)

(1)Non-current available-for-sale investments for which the fair value was estimated to equal cost less impairment under IAS 39, as their fair
value was not possible to estimate reliably, are classified as level 3 financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss under IFRS 9.

The gains and losses from venture fund and similar investments categorized in level 3 are included in other operating income and expenses. A
net loss of EUR 40 million (net gain of EUR 63 million in full year 2017) related to level 3 financial instruments held at September 30, 2018,
was included in profit and loss in 2018.
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11. PROVISIONS (unaudited)

EUR million Restructuring
Divestment
related Warranty

Project
losses Litigation

Environmental
liabilities

Material
liability Other Total

At January 1, 2018 722 76 210 76 130 107 66 502 1 888
Translation differences 0 (5) 0 1 (14) 3 1 (2) (17)
Reclassification (18) 0 0 0 9 0 (1) 10 (1)
Charged to income statement 198 (3) 62 (4) 22 9 26 (79) 230
Additional provisions 238 0 116 0 31 10 57 69 521
Changes in estimates(1) (40) (4) (55) (4) (8) (2) (32) (148) (292)
Utilized during period(2) (319) 0 (80) (14) (29) (6) (19) (53) (519)
At September 30, 2018 583 67 192 59 118 112 73 378 1 581

(1)The changes in estimates in other provisions include a release of EUR 110 million due to resolution of a tax dispute related to discontinued
operations.

(2)The utilization of restructuring provision includes items transferred to accrued expenses, of which EUR 54 million remained in accrued
expenses as of September 30, 2018.

12. INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES (unaudited)

Carrying amount (EUR million)

Issuer/Borrower Instrument Currency
Nominal
(million) Final maturity

September 30,
2018

September 30,
2017

December 31,
2017

Nokia Corporation 6.75% Senior
Notes EUR 231 February 2019 234 243 241

Nokia Corporation 5.375% Senior
Notes USD 581 May 2019 502 498 487

Nokia Corporation 1.00% Senior
Notes EUR 500 March 2021 499 498 498

Nokia Corporation 3.375% Senior
Notes USD 500 June 2022 411 417 406

Nokia Corporation 2.00% Senior
Notes EUR 750 March 2024 743 743 744

Nokia Corporation 4.375% Senior
Notes USD 500 June 2027 397 413 404

Nokia of America
Corporation

6.50% Senior
Notes USD 74 January 2028 64 63 62

Nokia of America
Corporation

6.45% Senior
Notes USD 206 March 2029 180 177 174

Nokia Corporation 6.625% Senior
Notes USD 500 May 2039 432 432 424

Nokia Corporation Revolving
credit facility EUR 1579 June 2020 0 0 0

Nokia Corporation Loan facility(1) EUR 500 0
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